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People hold the 
future to this 
region 
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I would like to acknowledge the original owners of the 
lands of West Arnhem Shire Council.

Our Shire covers some truly magnificent places. Kakadu 
is often thought of as the ancient, cultural heart of our 
nation. Boisterous seasonal storms roll down from 
the Arnhem Land escarpment across the expansive 
Alligator River floodplains, which lay flat like welcome 
mats, capturing the rain and dulling the roaring winds, 
ensuring no footprints are left behind. The secluded 
tropical island communities provide a refreshing 
contrast to the sheer and rugged red beauty of greater 
Arnhem Land.

Our people hold the future to this region. 

There is no shying away from the fact the enabling 
people to unlock their potential has its challenges in this 
part of Australia. 

From a Shire perspective, delivering services to 6,200 
residents spread across 50,000km2 – an area almost 
a big as Tasmania – requires detailed planning. Rivers 
rise and fall according to sometimes erratic rainfall, and 
long barge trips from Darwin make delivering goods 
essential for services difficult.

The Shire is contracted to provide a range of community 
and commercial services on behalf of the NT and 
Australian Governments, so these services we provide 
can be highly dependent on their priorities. 

This year, the Shire’s contract for community 
development and employment programs through the 
federally-funded CDEP program ended. 

This means a number of prominent and popular 
community programs, such as general community 
beautification projects, community gardens, and 
economic enterprise and community development 
projects, will no longer be delivered by the Shire. 

At the beginning of the 2012-13 financial year the 
Shire was in a better financial position than it had been 
for many years. 

This year, we have completed a number of significant 
projects such as the purchase of two new garbage 
trucks, the implementation of a new people-focussed 
website, the re-establishment of local boards in all four 
Aboriginal communities, new playgrounds, ongoing 
management of swimming pools, and importantly, a 
stabilising of the budget position.

Stabilising our financial position is vital to our future 
success. So too is improving our governance structures 
and we have come a long way this financial year, 
re-establishing local boards and providing more 
information through the website. 

These are important as we navigate the local 
government reforms currently underway in the Northern 
Territory. 

People are the future to this 
region... enabling them to 
unlock their potential has its 
challenges 

MAYOR 
STATEMENT

Mayor Lothar Siebert
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LOCATION

West Arnhem Shire covers an area of almost 
50,000km2 of stunning natural landscape in the western 
part of Arnhem Land, Northern Territory. 

More than two thirds of the Shire’s population of over 
6200 identify as Aboriginal Australians, who reside in 
towns, communities and outstations.

The Shire provides a range of local government services 
to five towns and communities across four wards. The 
Aboriginal communities of Minjilang and Warruwi 
are located in Barrah Ward, Maningrida community 
in Maningrida Ward, and Gunbalanya community in 
Gunbalanya Ward. The town of Jabiru, which was 
established to service the nearby Ranger uranium mine, 
is situated in Kakadu Ward which also includes the 
World Heritage listed Kakadu National Park. 
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More than two thirds of the Shire’s 
population of 6200 identify as 
Aboriginal Australians, who 
reside in towns, communities and 
outstations. 

English is widely spoken, and many 
residents also speak numerous 
Aboriginal languages and dialects 
including Kunwinjku, Maung, 
Iwaidja, Ndjebbana and Burrara. 

Jabiru is the Shire headquarters, and 
is also a service town for the Ranger 
uranium mine and Kakadu National 
Park. 

The Shire provides local government 
services to the five towns and 
communities, including rubbish 
collection, parks and gardens 
maintenance, local road repairs, 
water and sewerage (Jabiru only), 
and community activities and sport 
and recreation services. 

The shire also provides a range 
of services on behalf of other 
government agencies including some 
postal services, housing, aged and 
community care, and motor vehicle 
registry services. 

Maningrida is the most populated 
community, with a population 
of 2292 according to the 2011 
Census, followed by Gunbalanya 
(population 1171), Jabiru 
(population 1129), Warruwi 
(population 423) and Minjilang 
(population 269). 

The remaining residents live in more 
than 50 family outstations throughout 
the region. 

These population figures can vary 
greatly depending on season and 
family migration.

There are many popular 
tourist destinations in the Shire 
boundaries, including stunning 
outback landscapes, colourful rock 
escarpments, glorious wetlands and 
picture-perfect beaches. 

The cultural legacy of the Aboriginal 
people of the Northern Territory 
is evident in the various forms of 
rock art to be found in caves and 
rock overhangs. traditional lands 
of the Gagudju people, in the West 
Arnhem Shire.

WEST ARNHEM 
RESIDENTS

WEST ARNHEM 
COMMUNITIES

WEST ARNHEM
SERVICES

WEST ARNHEM SHIRE COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW

People   6,232 
Male   3,263 
Female   2,969 
Median age  26 

Indigenous  4695 
Non-Indigenous  1537

Families  1,221 
Avg. children per family 2.3 
Avg. people per household  
    4.2

Languages (other than 
English, no. of speakers) 
Kunwinjku   1,593 
Burarra      836 
Maung      357 
Ndjebbana     329 
Iwaidja      133

Courtesy of Australian Bureau of Statistics 2011 
Census data. 

POPULATION SNAPSHOT
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Quisque 
ut purus 
vitae turpis 
interdum 
tristique. 
Pellentesque 
tempus, diam 
at vehicula 
luctus, quam 
sapien ornare 
nisi, ac semper 
nisi erat.

•	 Quisque ut purus vitae turpis interdum tristique. 
Pellentesque tempus, diam at vehicula luctus, 
quam sapien ornare nisi, ac semper nisi erat eget 
turpis. Vestibulum ante ipsum primis in faucibus 
orci luctus et ultrices posuere cubilia Curae; Fusce 
pellentesque, lacus et vehicula porttitor, magna 
neque malesuada ligula.

Photo: Name of the photo source

More than 
6200 residents 
live across 
50,000km2 

of stunning 
natural 
landscapes 
in five 
communities 
and more than 
50 small family 
homelands...

The information on the right represents the estimated 
proportion of residents residing in each West Arnhem 
Shire Ward. These figures are best estimates based on 
2011 Census data. Population numbers, particularly 
in Gunbalanya and Maningrida Wards, can vary 
depending on the time of year and the weather and are 
indicative only. 

Photo: Bottle Rock, Warruwi (South Goulburn Island.
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BARRAH
WARD

KAKADU
WARD

MANINGRIDA
WARD

GUNBALANYA
WARD

•	 Most residents of Barrah Ward live in 
Warruwi (423) and Minjilang (308), two 
remote island communities located in the 
azure Arafura Sea12%

•	 Gunbalanya is the largest town in 
this ward, with 1126 residents, and 
the remainder living in oustations 
and homelands mainly near the 
Arnhem Land plateau22%

•	 Jabiru is the Shire headquarters 
and home to 1126 residents, 
with an additional 281 
residents living in oustations and 
homelands throughout Kakadu23%

•	 Maningrida is the 
largest town in the 
Shire with 2292 
residents42%
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WEST ARNHEM SHIRE   
COUNCILLORS

GUNBALANYA WARD

MAYOR
Cr Lothar Siebert
Gunbalanya Ward

Cr Alex 
Siebert

Cr Michelle 
Siebert

Cr Matthew 
Ryan

Cr Dene 
Herreen

Cr Helen 
Williams

Cr Ralph 
Blyth

Cr Peter 
Wilson 

Cr James 
Marrawal

Cr Johnny 
Namayiwa

Cr Davison 
Nawirridj

BARRAH WARD

DEPUTY MAYOR
Ms Yarmirr*
Barrah Ward

KAKADU WARD

MANINGRIDA WARD

*The Deupty Mayor died in August 2013, photo not published for cultural reasons 
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West Arnhem Shire Council is one of the largest 
employers in the region. As at 30 June 2013, the Shire 
had 216 employees located in six offices. The Shire 
headquarters, including Council Chambers, are located 
in the Jabiru Town Plaza, Jabiru, and there are service 
delivery centres in all four Aboriginal communities 
(Gunbalanya, Maningrida, Warruwi and Minjilang) 
and an administrative annexe in Darwin. 

Staffing numbers

The proportion of overall staff based in the Jabiru 
headquarters increased from 14% to nearly 20% of 
the total workforce (compared with 30 June 2012), 
while the proportion of Darwin-based staff decreased, 
reaffirming the Shire’s commitment to providing more 
localised services to communities.  Of these 216 

employees, just over 53% (115) were employed 
full-time, which is an increase of 3% percent on the 
previous year.

The overall percentage of Shire (non-CDEP) Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander employees remained steady at 
just under 60% compared with 30 June 2012, however 
this is still up significantly on two years ago. 

The number of staff employed by the Shire is highly 
dependent on external funding bodies. Many staff are 
contracted to complete projects funded by the NT and 
Australian Governments. In the coming financial year, 
the Shire will no longer provide the CDEP program, 
which will have an impact on staffing levels.  

Retaining and employing skilled staff is a challenge for 
local government across the Territory. 

During 2012-13, the Shire introduced salary sacrificing 
as an additional benefit for its employees. 

During the year the Shire also appointed a Workplace 
Mentor to support retention rates and develop skills 
in line with the Australian Government’s Indigenous 
Workforce initiative. 

The Shire also started the creation of an integrated 
Indigenous workforce strategy to create established 
career pathways within the organisation. 

West Arnhem Shire Council provides a range of local government services to residents of West Arnhem Land in 
the Northern Territory. Our headquarters are located in Jabiru, in the middle of the World Heritage-listed Kakadu 
National Park , and we have offices in the mainland Aboriginal towns of Maningrida and Gunbalanya, and on the 
island communities of Warruwi (South Goulburn Island) and Minjilang (Croker Island).

WEST ARNHEM SHIRE
STAFF SNAPSHOT

THE SHIRE IS ONE 
OF THE REGION’S 
LARGEST EMPLOYERS

PROPORTION OF STAFF: 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

53.24%

34.72%

12.04% 10.65%

63.89%
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WEST ARNHEM SHIRE  
ORGANISATION OVERVIEW 

Brian was appointed CEO of the Shire at the beginning of the 2012-13 
financial year. From 1993 to 1995 Brian helped establish the Gulin Gulin 
and Weemol Community Council, and in 2003 he spent time as the CEO 
for the community government council in Yarralin, about 400kms south west 
of Katherine. 

Following this, Brian spent about 10 years in the Northern Territory 
Government in areas of local government, remote services and Indigenous 
housing.

Brian is responsible for providing strategic direction for the Shire, ensuring 
effective good governance structures and implementing the policies of 
Council.

Valentin is responsible for providing 
effective strategic leadership for all 
the Shire’s financial and corporate 
services.  

He is a certified practising 
accountant, and before coming to 
West Arnhem Shire Council was 
a senior manager for audit and 
advisory services with Merit Partners 
based in Darwin. Areas he look 
after include:

•	 financial management

•	 governance

•	 commercial services

•	 information technology systems

•	 risk management

•	 engagement with stakeholders

•	 quality service delivery.

Gordon acted as Executive 
Manager Infrastructure following the 
departure of Alex Douglas in early 
2013. This position is responsible 
for:

•	 parks, reserves and open spaces

•	 buildings, facilities and fixed assets

•	 management of cemeteries

•	 lighting for public safety

•	 local road upgrading and 
maintenance

•	 traffic management on local roads

•	 local environmental health

•	 waste management including litter 
removal 

•	 water and sewerage collection and 
management (Jabiru only).

Chris joined West Arnhem Shire in 
early 2013. The Human Resources 
Manager is responsible for ensuring 
the Shire’s workforce can meet 
operational demands of its activities, 
and managing all aspects of human 
resourcing from recruitment through 
to employee relations. 

The Shire is developing an 
Indigenous workforce strategy to 
improve career pathways and 
increase overall retention.

Areas Chris is responsible for 
include:

•	 recruitment of staff

•	 employee wellbeing 

•	 retention

•	 training and skills.

Brian Hylands, Chief Executive Officer

Valentin MarkezChris SwansonGordon Smith
Executive Manager Corporate ServicesManager Human ResourcesA/Executive Manager Infrastructure
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Council is one of the 

largest employers in 

the region
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REPORT 
ON STRATEGIC GOALS
Each year West Arnhem Shire Council develops strategic goals, 
outlined in our Shire Plan. 

The Shire Plan 2012-13 also includes the annual 
budget. The CEO and Shire staff develop a number of 
actions against the five goals of Council outlined in the 
plan. 

The challenges and opportunities of Council are 
assessed and considered throughout the operation year.

This annual report provides information on what 
activities the Shire undertood in the 2012-13 financial 
year to achieve these goals.

The five broad goals which guide the Shire’s activities 
are:

•	 	Community	Development

•	 	Built	Environment

•	 	Economic	Development	

•	 	Culture	and	Heritage

•	 	Governance	and	Organisation.	



15

Communities that are safe, 
healthy, adequately housed, 
active and well educated

GOAL 1  
COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT

Jabiru Public 
Library has 
over 900 
members...

Each year, the Shire provides a range of services that:

•	 are accessible and consistent with community needs

•	 support development and wellbeing of children and youth

•	 increase participation in sport and recreation

•	 support aged and disabled residents

•	 support safe and healthy communities.

2012-13 highlights include:

Jabiru Public Library

The Jabiru Public Library is a popular and modern 
meeting space for residents and visitors where they can 
access information and technology, guided by qualified 
and friendly information navigators. The NT Government 
provides core operational funding, enabling the Shire 
to provide a full suite of library services to residents. 
There are more than 900 registered library members, 
and more than 650 items are circulated amongst this 
membership every week.  

Other key achievements include:

•	 every Wednesday around 40 young children, including 
those from the Jabiru Childcare Centre, gather for popular 
storytime readings and craft activities. 

•	 during the June/July school holidays, more than 200 
children attended daily craft activities, movie viewing and 
supervised board games.

•	 the Library is also one of the only places providing visitors 
to Kakadu access to the internet

•	 the popular Kakadu Collection is a unique, specialised 
catalogue of rare books, manuscripts, photos, videos 
and annuals about Kakadu, the Alligator Rivers region 
and Jabiru, including valuable resources on the local 
Aboriginal cultures.

Community Development Employment Projects 
(CDEP) program

On 30 June 2013, the Australian Government wrapped 

up the CDEP program. CDEP, Job Services Australia, 
Disability Employment Services and the Indigenous 
Employment Program will all be replaced by a single 
program call Remote Jobs and Communities Program 
(RJCP). 

Through CDEP, the Shire engaged eligible participants 
to work on a range of projects to enhance the amenity 
of towns and communities, and build on skills and 
develop career pathways. As at 30 May 2013, there 
were 151 participants engaged by the Shire through the 
program working on gardening, construction, arts and 
culture, and community support projects in Minjilang, 
Gunbalanya and Warruwi.

Some of the major achievements during the year 
included:

•	 more than ten Gunbalanya residents obtaining their 
Certificate II Construction through Batchelor College, 
participants gained experience completing projects 
including office extensions, general house repairs and 
building a works compound

•	 building capacity in local organisations to undertake 
commercial enterprises, including providing governance 
support and assistance to Yagbani Aboriginal 
Corporation who are developing an aquaculture project 
on South Goulburn Island

•	 use of CDEP teams as ‘contractors’ hired out by other 
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community organisations to 
complete local projects.

The Shire will not provide these 
services in 2013-14 financial year 
as another organisation successfully 
tendered for the RJCP program, 
replacing CDEP. 

Sport and recreation

West Arnhem Shire Council employs 
up to seventeen sport and recreation 
staff (including swimming pool staff), 
funded through core operational 
funding and grants from the 
Northern Territory and Australian 
Governments. 

The sport and recreation team 
organise the major sporting and 
community event organised by 
the Shire, the Gurrung Sports 
Carnival. The Carnival was run 
on 13 and 14 September 2012, 
bringing more than 200 participants 
(with an emphasis on 16-25 year 
olds) to Jabiru for men’s and 
women’s basketball and men’s 
AFL tournaments. The Carnival is 
supported by a number of local and 
Territory organisations. All five West 
Arnhem Shire Council communities 

are represented, making it a 
significant event in the regional 
calendar. 

Other sport and recreation 
achievements include:

•	 development of the local indigenous 
community workforce by the 
recruitment and training of local 
members into positions

•	 continuous training of indigenous 
employees in Certificate 2 & 3 
Sport and Recreation

•	 the development and implementation 
of the federally-funded Youth in 
Communities program aimed at 
disengaged and youth at risk 
Gunbalanya through

•	 the provision of a variety of sport 
and recreational activities in the five 
communities including structured 
AFL, basketball, netball and touch 
football competitions

Jabiru Childcare Centre

The Shire operates the Jabiru 
Childcare Centre. Enrolment 
numbers stabilised during the 
year, and there were a number of 
significant achievements including:

•	 passing the Quality Assessment 
ratings visit under the Childcare 

National Quality Standards

•	 purchasing of new toys for the 
centre, including with $3000 raised 
by parents, staff and friends of the 
centre

•	 new kitchen equipment purchased to 
provide healthy meals for children, 
and clients through the community 
services programs

•	 all staff including casual staff must 
be enrolled in (or have completed) 
an approved childcare course, and 
group leaders require diploma-level 
qualifications or study towards 
achieving this.

Night patrol 

The Shire operates night patrol 
services in Gunbalanya, Warruwi 
and Minjilang through Australian 
Government funding. During this 
year:

•	 the Shire handed night patrol 
services in Maningrida across to 
Indigenous community controlled 
organisation Bawinanga Aboriginal 
Corporation

•	 approximately 80% of frontline staff 
employed were Indigenous

•	 the services worked with community 
justice organisations and 
stakeholders to improve school 
attendance and amenity.

West Arnhem Shire 
Council employs up 
to seventeen sport 
and recreation staff
Community care

West Arnhem Shire assists people to 
stay in their homes and communities 
by providing care, maintenance 
and support services to aged and 
disability clients.

There are four Community Care 
Centres at Gunbalanya, Jabiru, 
Warruwi and Minjilang that deliver 
Home and Community Care 
(HACC), Community Aged Care 
Packages (CACP) and Disability 
Services (DDHS)  to 61 clients, all 
funded through contracts with the 
Australian Government. 

Nine Gunbalanya residents made their way Batchelor to 
obtain their Certificate II in Construction.

Another six people from the Arnhem Land community 
also obtained their certifi cate but could not attend the 
ceremony. The training was delivered by Batchelor Institute, 
combining quality, project-oriented, hands-on training and 

development of positive ongoing relationships between the 
trainer and students.

This year’s training was delivered by Sam Halliday, with 
assistance from JobFind. The CDEP West Arnhem Shire 
Council team negotiated with the Institute to bring Sam 
back in 2012 to deliver another course.
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The Gurrung 
Sports Carnival 
is the Shire’s 
flagship 
community & sports 
event, bringing 
more than 200 
competitors from 
around West 
Arnhem Land to 
Jabiru for two 
days of AFL  & 
basketball
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•	 outstanding Medicare claims finalised

•	 food registration renewed for all Community Care 
services

•	 one-off funding provided upgrade of equipment for 
HACC and clients and purchase of new HACC vehicle 
in Warruwi

•	 garden put in at centre by crèche and HACC staff in 
Warruwi

•	 one-off HACC funding provided upgrade of kitchen and 
equipment for centre and clients in Minjilang

•	 applied to Australian Government for assistance with 
addressing outstanding Gunbalanya Improvement Plan, 
with Communio engaged to assist the Shire

•	 transfer of 6 CACP places from Jabiru to Gunbalanya 
applied for and approved

•	 a number of client outings arranged, including a cruise 
at Yellow Water (Cooinda) and a fishing trip.

Breakfast and lunch are delivered five days a week to 
all clients and weekend packs are provided for CACP 
clients. Other services are provided including respite 
for carers, personal care, cultural outings, shopping 
and clinic visits.

Staff also provide a range of early childhood services. 
Warruwi crèche provided child care from 2 to 25 
children aged under 5, while Warruwi Out of Hours 
School Care and Vacation Care provided care to 
approx 8 school age children under 12 years. The 
School Nutrition Program at Minjilang provided up to 
70 breakfast and lunch meals plus fruit, 5 days a week 
to the Minjilang School.

Key achievement included:

•	 providing approximately 31,000 meals to clients

•	 employment of a full-time Community Care coordinator 
in April

“She was teaching me about activities for kids to play at 
crèche. I was helping Sue to meet the right people, the elders. 
And to learn about our community and our way.” Warruwi 
Childcare employee Caroline Manilawu. 

STAFF PROVIDE 31,000 
MEALS

West Arnhem Shire recently supported Warruwi early childhood educator Caroline 
Minilawu to travel to Cairns for the 5th Secretariat of National Aboriginal and 
Islander Child Care (SNAICC) conference. 

SNAICC are the national non-government peak body in Australia representing the 
interests of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander children and families.

Ms Minilawu joined her early childhood colleagues Rebekah Farmer, Dr Lyn Fasoli 
and Millie Olcay from the Batchelor Institute presenting research undertaken in 
the Northern Territory that was compiled to produce the publication “You’re in 
New Country - Advice for non-Indigenous mentors, trainers and teachers.”

Through this publication Indigenous early childhood educators explored the 
question - “What is important for non-Indigenous people to learn to help them 
support your early childhood work and learning?”

During this presentation Ms Minilawu shared the story of the positive mutual 
mentoring relationship she shared with former Warruwi crèche team leader 
Susan Ware who was involved in the original research process during her time 
working in the remote NT community of Wadeye. 

Ms Minilawu stood before an audience of 80 - 100 conference delegates and 
spoke of how she and Ms Ware took the time to get to know each other and 
develop a strong trusting relationship allowing for them to share Indigenous and 
western knowledge.



19

“Living in Maningrida and working for ourselves and making 
the community a better place to live in...” Maningrida works 
officer Jamie Yibarbuk (below right) whose team looks after 
Maningrida’s parks, gardens and internal roads. 

Well maintained and 
enhanced physical 
infrastructure

GOAL 2  
BUILT 
ENVIRONMENT

Improving 
community 
facilties...The Shire strives for well maintained and enhanced 

physical infrastructure, including:

•	 safe and reliable roads and footpaths 

•	 attractive parks, gardens, streetscapes and open spaces 

•	 effective management of Council facilities and assets 

•	 improved waste management. 
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2012-13 INFRASTRUCTURE HIGHLIGHTS

Cyclone repairs - 
airport road
Minjilang airport road upgraded 
following Cyclone Grant, funded 
through the Australian and NT 
Governments

New tractor/
slasher
New tractor for Minjilang, purchased 
thanks to an Australian Government 
grant  

Office extended

The Gunbalanya Shire office was 
extended thanks to an NT Govern-
ment grant

Cert II Construction

Up to 15 CDEP participants obtained 
their Cert II Consturction, gaining 
experience on Shire projects  

Grant for garbage 
truck
Grant secured for a brand new gar-
bage truck for Gunbalanya thanks to 
NT Government grant 

Refuse station up to 
standards
The Gunblanaya transfer station 
was brought up to NT Government 
standards

New playground

Children’s playground installed at 
Jabiru Swimming Pool thanks to an 
NT Government grant  

Bike path upgrades

A number of bike paths and 
pedestrian walkways upgraded 
around Jabiru  

Childcare centre 
refurbished
The Jabiru Childcare Centre was 
refurbished, with airconditioners, 
new paintwork and roof repairs 

Town Plaza toilets 
refurbished
The Jabiru Town Plaza toilets were 
refurbished, to benefit businesses, 
their patrons and visitors 
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New culverts

Shire works staff installed new 
culverts on internal roads 

New weather radar

Shire staff helped with general 
construction for the Bureau of 
Meteorology’s newest weather 
watch radar in Warruwi  

Works compound 
upgraded
Significant upgrades were made to 
the Warruwi compound, including 
repairs to essential equipment  

Car body cleanup

More than 60 cars were removed 
from Maningrida township with 
help from Bawinanga Aboriginal 
Corporation 

Airport road up-
grade
Airport road resealed in Maningirda 
through the Roads To Recovery 
program

Three new childrens 
playgrounds
Funding secured for three new 
playgrounds to be installed in 
coming financial years

New garbage truck

Replacement garbage truck secured 
for Maningrida through an NT 
Government grant 
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Developed and scheduled 
maintenance programs for 
parks, ovals and reserves

Completed repairs on the Minjilang airport road following 
damage from Cyclone Grant in December 2011 with funds 
obtained through the NT and Australian Governments 

•	 new playground installed at Jabiru Swimming Pool (renamed 
Alberto Luglietti Memorial Swimming Pool in May) thanks to 
NT Government grant, and two separate NT Government 
grants expended on upgrades to essential                        
pool infrastructure 

•	 progress towards staff housing asset registrations and 
maintenance.

Road network services

•	 road, footpath, street lighting and stormwater maintenance 
schedule developed in Gunbalanya, and progress towards 
these developed in other communities

•	 hazard identification and road condition assessment report 
templates created

•	 grading frequency for internal access roads determined

•	 expended the Australian Government’s Road to Recovery 
funding for upgrades of Maningrida airport road

•	 completed repairs on the Minjilang airport road following 
damage from Cyclone Grant in December 2011 with funds 
through the NT and Australian Governments.

Parks and gardens

•	 developed and scheduled maintenance programs for parks, 
ovals and reserves

•	 community consultation continued on the establishment of a 
gazetted cemetery in Maningrida, including with the NT 
Government who undertook a Territory-wide review of the 
Cemeteries Act

•	 ride-on mowers purchased for Warruwi and Gunbalanya

•	 old playground removed at Magela Oval in Jabiru, however a 
new replacement playground installed at the Jabiru Swimming 
Pool 

•	 secured funding for three playgrounds for Maningrida

•	 general upgrades to the Maningrida AFL oval, including to 
irrigation, and installation of a scoreboard and goalposts.

Other 2012-13 highlights include:

Dog control 

•	 applied for funding to develop and implement a dog 
control program, including by-laws, for Maningrida

•	 worked with Parks Australia to roll-out the ‘Living in a 
national park, it’s common sense stuff’ campaign to 
encourage Jabiru residents to be vigilant about dog 
ownership in Kakadu

•	 developed effective relationships with national park 
authorities on management issues

•	 investigated dog complaints according to policies and 
procedures

•	 enforced dog registrations in Jabiru (the only community 
with by-laws)

•	 in consultation with Parks Australia, carried out culling 
of wild dogs near Jabiru as required  

•	 provided in-kind support to veterinarians visiting 
Maningrida and Gunbalanya who provide a range of 
dog control activities.

Buildings

•	 assets, including buildings, managed and maintained 
according to maintenance plans

•	 investigated opportunities, including through the 
Regional Development Australia Fund, to source 
external funding for projects

•	 upgraded the Jabiru Childcare Centre, including repairs 
to the roof and airconditioners, and new paint works 

•	 the old clinic in Minjilang upgraded into a community 
centre

•	 workshop compound in Warruwi upgraded, and, 
separately, repairs made after fire damaged the 
garbage truck and irrigation equipment for the oval
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Waste and water management

•	 regular domestic waste collected in each community

•	 landfill sites maintained at a minimum standard for safe 
access and operation, particularly in Gunbalanya where 
the site was brought up to environmental standards set by 
the regulator  

•	 groundwater bores, water distribution network and 
maintenance of the sewerage network undertaken in 
Jabiru (not a Shire responsibility in other communities)

•	 progress towards obtaining licences for landfill sites in 
Gunbalanya, Maningrida and Jabiru 

•	 won the 2012 Tidy Towns Resource Recovery Award for 
recycling in Jabiru for the fourth time in five years.

Fleet

•	 rationalisation of the Shire’s fleet, with Council approving 
the disposal of over 35 vehicles, resulting in significant 
ongoing cost savings for the Shire

•	 grants obtained to purchase and replace essential fleet, 
including the delivery of a near-new garbage truck 
in Maningrida and a grant obtained to purchase a 
brand new garbage truck for Gunbalanya thanks to NT 
Government grants

•	 purchase of two new ride-on mowers, and a new tractor/
slasher, through NT Government grants

•	 training provided to upgrade operator skills on a variety 
of vehicles.

Emergency management 

•	 Responded to requests for assistance from police and 
emergency service agencies as required.

The Shire provides 
essential services 
like power on 
behalf of other 
government 
agencies in some 
communities 
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A dynamic and growing 
economy with strong local 
employment 

GOAL 3  
ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT

The Shire, as one of the largest employers in the region, 
has an important part to play in the regional economy 
including:

•	 providing local employment 

•	 providing access to visitor accommodation services  

•	 maintaining public infrastructure that supports 
communities and economic development. 

The Shire operates a number of commercial programs 
that generate revenue to help offset the cost of 
core services which are not fully recovered through 
the collection of rates and charges. These include 
managing contracts for Territory Housing, Australia 
Post, Power and Water Corporation (PowerWater) for 
essential services, and running visitor accommodation 
in the four Aboriginal communities. 

The ability of the Shire to provide sustainable enterprise 
opportunities will be hampered in coming years by 
the loss of the CDEP program. Through this program, 
the Shire was successful in generating income from 
construction teams, and provided signficant support to 
Yagbani Aboriginal Corporation in Warruwi to increase 
their governance and organisational capacity, and 
worked with the community to further the aquaculture 
project. In future, Yagbani may be in a position to take 
on the delivery of services currently provided by other 
agencies, including the Shire. 

2012-13 highlights include:

Power and Water Indigenous employment

Of the 41 positions directly associated with the 
provision of the services associated with the 
PowerWater contract 71% of those are Indigenous (the 
PowerWater objective is 60% Indigenous employment). 

During the year PowerWater partnered with Advanced 
International Training to deliver Certificate II Remote 
Area Essential Services qualifications for some staff. The 
Shire provided letters of support to assist them in the 
process of applying for the qualification to be on scope 

and three employees complete this training.

Workplace mentoring

As one of the largest employees, the Shire is committed 
to developing pathways to get local people into jobs. 
During the year the Shire appointed a Workplace 
Mentor to support retention rates and develop skills 
in line with the Australian Government’s Indigenous 
Workforce initiative. The Shire also started the creation 
of an integrated Indigenous workforce strategy.

Maintaining infrastructure to support 
economic development

The Shire also maintains infrastructure that supports 
economic development in the region, including 
maintenance of internal roads in communities, 
providing sporting venues used for regional carnivals, 
and accommodation services enabling visitors to stay in 
communities. Accommodation services provide a useful 
income stream for the Shire.

Events to support local 
businesses

While Shires have limited capacity to alter the substantive 
economic environment of regions, their support for events 
which generate bed nights and retail spending can be 
valuable.

The inaugural Kakadu Triathlon was held in Jabiru on 
Saturday 25 May 2013. The event was coordinated 
by Leona Katzer from Ranger uranium mine with the 
assistance of a number of organisations across the 
Top End, including West Arnhem Shire Council. The 
Shire’s 50m swimming pool hosted the swim leg, before 
participants ran and rode around Jabiru. More than 90 
people participated in the event and was a major event on 
Jabiru’s calendar. 

The Shire also runs the largest sporting event in the West 
Arnhem region every September, the Gurrung Sports 
Carnival. More than 250 participated in this event from 
across the Top End.
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The Shire worked 
closely with Yagbani 
Aboriginal Corporation 
and the Warruwi 
community to further 
an aquaculture 
project to revive the 
centuries-old sea 
cucumber trade 
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A Shire that respects, protects 
and nurtures the diversity of 
our culture and heritage

GOAL 4  
CULTURE & 
HERITAGE

To further this goal, the Shire:

•	 creates cultural opportunities that contribute to the 
wellbeing of the community

•	 provide opportunities for participation in civic and 
community events.

The Shire supports a number of projects that highlight 
and showcase the culture and heritage of this unique 
part of Australia.

This includes providing general administrative support, 
and auspicing the Australian Government grants of, 
the following programs that document and promote 
indigenous Aboriginal languages from the region:

•	 the Minjilang Endangered Language Program (Minjilang, 
Croker Island)

•	 the Mawng Language Project (Warruwi, Goulburn 
Islands)

•	 the Bininj Gunwok Language Project.

The Shire also currently administers the grant provided 
by the Australian Government for the Mardbalk Arts 
Centre. The Shire is working with stakeholders to 
transition the operation of the centre across to an 
Indigenous-controlled organisation. In the mean time, 
the centre has been operating at reduced capacity. 

The Shire provides a range of opportunities for 
residents to participate in civic and community events. 

The Mayor presided over the citizenship ceremony for a 
Jabiru resident, and Councillors participated in ANZAC 
Day services across the Shire. 

Shire staff also organised a range of community events 
in each community, and supported the Jamalak Festival 
in Warruwi, Stone Country Festival in Oenpelli, the 
Gurrung Sports Carnival in Jabiru, Australia Day 
awards and celebrations and sport and recreation 
activities. 

The Shire also provide resources for staff from the 
Berndt Museum, University of Western Australia, 
for their ‘Little Paintings, Big Stories’ exhibition. This 
explored the interrelationship between people, country 
and stories, through the gossip songs of language 
groups of the Goulburn Islands and of Arnhem Land. 

Cultural opportunities that 
contribute to the wellbeing 
of the community

Photo: Tourism NT
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One of the key responsibilities of the Shire is to ensure 
Councillors can fulfil their governance obligations. This 
includes ensuring the efficient operation of the Shire 
administration, and enhancing representation through 
Local Boards, Council Committees and on Council 
subsidiaries. 

In late 2012, the NT Government indicated plans 
to review regional local government. A number of 
workshops and consultation sessions were held in West 
Arnhem communities throughout the year. The outcomes 
of these sessions will inform any future changes to the 
composition and responsibilities of local government in 
regional parts of the Northern Territory. 

Local Boards

During the financial year the Shire significantly 
enhanced its governance structures with the re-
introduction of four Local Boards in Warruwi, Minjilang, 
Maningrida and Gunbalanya. 

Local Boards allow for community representation 
in local government and a stronger governance 
framework, in addition to promoting leadership and to 
provide the basis for people to help build a better future 
for their children, and effective pathways for input into 
government policy, planning and service delivery. 

The Shire also received a grant from the NT 
Government to strengthen governance through Local 
Boards, and part of this funding was used to provide 
governance workshops for Councillors and support to 
Local Board members. 

Website and communications

Governance was also enhanced through the 
development of a new-look West Arnhem Shire website. 
The new website provides up-to-date information on 
Council’s activities, and is a key engagement tool for 
the Council, particularly in dispersing news and for 
recruitment purposes. 

The Shire also produced 23 editions of ‘The Wire’, 
which acts as the Shires primary communciation tool 
with residents. 

The Shire 
enhanced its 
governance 
credentials 
with better 
communication 
and community 
engagement

Strong leadership, effective 
advocacy and high quality 
service provision supported by 
good management practices

GOAL 5  
GOVERNANCE &
ORGANISATION 

To further this goal, the Shire strives for:

•	 an effective, efficient and accountable Shire Council

•	 effective consultation, communication and productive 
partnerships

•	 good governance and leadership.

HEAVENS OPEN UP OVER WEST ARNHEM

NEW-LOOK ‘THE WIRE’ PROVIDES MORE INFO ON 
WHO ‘WE ARE’

TRIATHLON COMES TO 
KAKADU 

Photo (Fiona Bond): The skies about to open 
over Injalak Hill, Gunbalanya  

You may have noticed a new-look The 
Wire out today, which is part of West 
Arnhem Shire Council’s push to give you 
more information about who ‘We Are’!

Mayor Lothar Siebert is encouraging 
people to find out a little more about who 
‘We Are’ with the launch of a new Shire 
website to coincide with the new-look The 
Wire.

 “West Arnhem Shire Council provides a 
range of services across five West Arnhem 
communities,” Mayor Siebert said.

“The new website presents information 
about the Shire in a more professional, 
people-focussed way that captures the 
vibrancy of the people in our area.

“If you look closely, the words ‘We Are’ 
is located in our name ‘West Arnhem’, so 
the website and new-look The Wire is also 
designed to give people more information 
about our organisation.

“Like many people wouldn’t know the Shire 
removes more than 60,000kg of household 
rubbish every week – that’s the weight of 
about 100 car bodies.”

AFL in Maningrida

Kakadu Triathlon

Land claim over Jabiru

Hands up for Jabiru recycling

2

3

4

7

A late season drenching has made up for an otherwise uneventful 
Wet Season across West Arnhem Land with up to 435mm falling 
over the Easter long weekend. 

More than 250mm of rain fell over parts of Kakadu National Park, 
with rising streams and rivers flowing preventing some visitors and 
residents from returning home. 

There were unofficial reports of rainfall in excess of 350mm in other 

parts of the Park. 

Maningrida, approximately 500kms east of Darwin in Arnhem 
Land, recorded 435mm from Friday to Monday, including a 
190.4mm over a 24-hour period on Sunday. Warruwi on South 
Goulburn Island recorded just over 180mm over the four-day period, 
with raining continuing to this week, while Minjilang on Croker 
Island recorded just over 160mm and Gunbalanya had 138mm. 

+ more stories, more photos at www.westarnhem.nt.gov.au

pg 3

Fortnightly news in brief from 
Jabiru, Gunbalanya, Maningrida, 
Warruwi and Minjilang

Edition 290
Thu 4 Apr - 17 Apr 2013 

  wire@westarnhem.nt.gov.au   08 8979 9456 
 ©  Published by West Arnhem Shire Council

More photos on page 5 or visit www.westarnhem.nt.gov.au
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The website also provides greater information for 
residents on the functions of Local Boards.

Council and Committee meetings

The Council held 12 Ordinary Council meetings 
(and one Special Council meeting),11 Finance and 
Policy Committee Meetings and two Audit  Committee 
Meeting during the financial year. 

Corporate partnerships

As at 30 June 2013 the Shire maintained its 50% stake 
in Latititude 12, a specialist professional managed 
services provider. Latitude 12 provides the Shire’s 
records-keeping and financial services. 

CouncilBIZ, a local government subsidiary operating 
under the auspices of the Local Government Act, has 
been established to manage the information technology 
support of the shires, including West Arnhem Shire. 

Corporate governance

The Shire undertook a range of activities relating to 
corporate administration during the financial year. 
inlcuding:

•	 complying with financial reporting obligations under the 
Local Government Act and regulations

•	 generating monthly financial management reports

•	 produced key policy and direction documents including 
the Shire Plan, budget and Annual Report

•	 updated risk registers and achieved significant progress in 
implementing a risk management plan

•	 participated in a Territory-wide review of insurance 
premiums conducted by CounciBIZ

•	 worked with CouncilBIZ to develop an information 
technology hardware maintenance schedule

•	 appointed an IT administration officer to optimise costs 
associated with telecommunication costs

•	 achieved a rationalisation of fixed-line phone and 
photocopying equipment significantly reducing 
operational costs. 

Local Boards allow for community representation in local 
government and a stronger governance framework

Local Boards has proved to 
an excellent model to engage 
with the four communities on 
a range local government and 
community of issues.

Local Board meetings

The Shire established four Local Boards during 
the financial year, each with up to 15 members 
representing a wide range of stakeholders in each 
community. In the twelve months from July 2012:

•	 Warruwi Local Board met four times

•	 Gunbalanya Local Board met three times

•	 Maningrida Local Board met twice

•	 Minjilang Local Board met once

The Maningrida Local Board is the existing Local 
Reference Group the Federal Government uses to consult 
with the community. 
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Councillor

Ordinary 
Council 

meetings 
 

(13 held)

Finance 
& Policy 

Committee 
meetings  
(11 held) 

Audit 
Committee 

meetings 
 

(2 held)

Mayor Lothar Siebert 13 11 2

Deputy Mayor 10 5 0

Helen Williams 8 3 0

Peter Wilson 12 10 2

Alex Siebert 13 9 2

Johnny Namayiwa# 12

James Marrawal# 10

Michelle Siebert# 13

Davison Nawirridj# 13

Matthew Ryan# 11

Dene Herreen# 10

Ralph Blyth# 8

*includes Special Council Meeting 
# these Councillors are not members of the Finance & Policy Committee or the Audit Committee

Councillor Allowances 2012-13

Councillor Attendance 2012-13

 
 
Allowance

Ordinary 
Council 

member

Deputy 
Principal 
Member

Principal 
Member 
(Mayor)

Base allowance 12,001.11 24,673.97 66,727.29

Electoral allowance 4,391.59 4,391.59 17,563.16

TOTAL 16,370.70 29,065.56 84,290.45

Additional Professional Development Allowance 3,334.00 3,334.00 3,334.00

Extra Meeting Allowance 140.00* 0 0

* per meeting, up to maximum of $8,000.74 per annum
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The Jamalak 
Festival 
celebrates 
the culture 
and history 
of the 
community of 
Warruwi, South 
Goulburn 
Island, and is 
made possible 
through the 
support of 
Shire staff 
and recources

Every August the residents of South Goulburn Island and 
West Arnhem Land converge on Warruwi for Jamalak 
Festival. The Festival celebrates the people, culture and 
history of Warruwi, including the original Aboriginal 
inhabitants, the establishment of a settlement on the 
island in 1916 by Reverend Watson, through to today’s 
vibrant community culture. Reverend Watson arrived in 
Gunbalanya in 1914, and two years later he ventured 
north to the Gouldburn Island, establishing a church 
there in 1916. Jamalak Festival is a unique community 
celebration including local sports, arts and cultural 
activities, food and festivities. The NT Government 
provided $19,000 for the festival in 2012-13. 
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About the Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

The Financial Statements must be certified by the Chief 
Executive Officer as “presenting fairly” the Council’s 
financial results for the year and are required to be laid 
before Council, ensuring both responsibility for and 
ownership of the Financial Statements.

About the Primary Financial Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
A summary of Council’s financial performance for 
the year listing all major categories of income and 
expenses.

Statement of Financial Position 
A snapshot of Council’s Financial Position including its 
Assets and Liabilities as at 30 June.

Statement of Working Capital 
A measure of both Council’s efficiency and its short-
term financial health. In calculating the Working 
Capital Ratio restricted or “tied” funds are excluded. It 
represents the operating liquidity available to Council

Statement of Changes in Equity 
The overall change for the year (in dollars) of Council’s 
“net wealth”.

Statement of Cash Flows 
Indicates where Council’s cash came from and where it 
was spent.

About the Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide greater 
detail and additional information on the Primary 
Financial Statements.

About the Auditor’s Report

Council’s Financial Statements are required to be 
audited and the audit is in accordance with Australian 
Accounting and Auditing Standards. The Auditor 
provides an audit report which gives an opinion on 
whether the Financial Statements present fairly Council’s 
financial performance and position.

Who uses the Financial Statements?

The Financial Statements are publicly available 
documents and must be presented at a Council meeting 
after the date of the Audit Report.

Financial Performance

Council income is derived from various sources 
including rates and annual charges, user charges and 
fees, grants and contributions and other income derived 
from commercial operations.

It is important to understand that for grant funded 
programs in most of the cases, accounting standards 
require income to be recognized as revenue regardless 
whether it has been spent during the year or not. In 
cases where monies were not spent during the year, 
this compliance with accounting standards affects the 
matching principle of income and expenditure. As 
a general rule, the matching principle allows better 
evaluation of actual profitability and performance 
(shows how much was spent to earned revenue), and 
reduces noise from timing mismatch between when 

Understanding Council’s Financial 
Statements

Each year individual Local Governments across the 
Northern Territory are required to present a set of 
audited Financial Statements to their Council and 
Community. 

What you will find in the Statements

The Financial Statements set out the financial 
performance, financial position and cash flows of 
West Arnhem Shire Council (the Council) for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2013. The format 
of the Financial Statements complies with both 
the accounting and reporting requirements of 
Australian Accounting Standards.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF 
REPORTS
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costs are incurred and when revenue is realized. 
Therefore, the adherence to accounting standards (as 
required by the Local Government Act) generates an 
income and expenditure mismatch for those grants 
that were not spent during the year. This mismatch 
overstates the Operational Surplus in the year the grant 
was received (as there are no proportional expenses 
allocated to that income) and as a consequence, 
overstates the deficit in the year the monies are spent 
(as cash received previously will be expensed with no 
recognition of corresponding income – as this income 
was recognised in a prior year).

Another issue to take into consideration are capital 
grants, which are not matched to a specific expense in 
the year they are received, as the income is expensed 
through the depreciation associated to the asset. 

Therefore if we would like to overcome the issue 
explained above and get an overview of the real 
performance (profitability) of the Shire for the current 

year, we will need to adjust the figures coming from the 
Financial Statements. For this purpose, we need to look 
at the information coming from 2 places: the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income and Note 14 Conditions 
over grants and contributions. It is important to note 
also that the advance of operating grants received 
at the end of the financial year do not require to be 
disclosed in Note 14, but should be taken into account 
in our analysis, as these are monies to be used in the 
following financial year.

Council income derives from 

rates  and annual charges, user 

charges and fees, grants and 

contributions and other income 

derived from commercial 

operations.

2013 2012

$ $

Surplus / (Deficit) before Depreciation and 
Capital Grants per Financial Statements

3,416,740 5,844,985

Less:

Grants Received but not expensed during the year –  
Tied Funding - Non Capital

(1,259,443) (3,020,907)

Operational Grants Received in advance –  
to be used in future financial years

(2,290,750) (2,126,175)

Plus:

Expenses recognised during the current reporting 
period from revenues recognised in previous 
reporting periods

2,602,159 1,365,134

Total adjusted surplus / (deficit) for the year 2,468,706 2,063,037

The above figures show that, with the exclusion of operational 
grant funding, there was an operational surplus before 
Depreciation and Capital Grants, of $2.5m during the past 
financial year, compared to an operational surplus of $2.1m 
for the year ended 30 June 2012.
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Total Income

Total income received during 2012/13 was $28.2m 
with rates, annual and user charges contributing 
$3.7m (13.0%) which is 8% higher than the previous 
year. There was a substantial increase in 2012/13 
as a result of an increase in the number of rateable 
properties. The most notable revenue variance to 
budget for 2012/13 was in respect of Grant funding. 
Revenue associated with grants was $2,552,614 
below budget (-17%) due to the recognition, for budget 
purposes, of the brought forward unexpended grant 
balances.

Total Expenditure

Operating expenses consist of employee costs, 
materials and contracts, depreciation and other 
expenses but excludes capital expenditure. A summary 
of Council’s 2012/13 operating expenses is shown 
below. Total operating expenses were $24.8m in 
2012/13, which was a decrease of 6% over the 
previous year. Employee costs were $355,358 lower 
than the previous year. This was due, in part, to an 
inability to fill positions as and when they became 
vacant. Materials and contracts were $1.0m lower 
than the previous year due to tighter restrictions in 
expenditure.

In the context of the budget for 2012/13 Wages, 
Materials and Contracts were $4,509,233 (-19%) 
below budget. As a generalisation it can be said that 
expenditure in relation to grants was less than budgeted 
due to many factors - for example the inability to recruit 
and delays in construction projects, etc.

Net Operating Result 

Council’s net operating deficit for 2012/13 is 
$755,996. Council’s Operating result before 
Depreciation was a surplus of $3.9m as opposed to a 
surplus of $6.7m for the previous year. West Arnhem 
Shire Council budgeted for a surplus of $1,032,876 
for 2012/13. This budget did not include Depreciation. 
The surplus achieved in 2012/13, excluding 
Depreciation, was $3,881,822 due to the reduction in 
expenditure mentioned above.

2013 2012

Income $’000 $’000

Rates, Annual 
Charges and User 
Charges

3,720 3,438

Grants and 
Contributions

12,096 14,863

Other Operating 
Revenues

12,382 13,692

TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUES

28,198 31,994

2013 2012

Expenditure $’000 $’000

Employee Costs 10,029 10,645

Materials and 
Contracts

13,701 14,704

Other Operating 
Exepenses

790 800

TOTAL OPERATING 
EXPENSES

24,781 26,149

2013 2012

Net Results $’000 $’000

Operating results 
before depreciation 
expense

 3,882 6,671

Depreciation Expense  (4,638)  (4,406)

NET OPERATING 
RESULTS

 (756)  2,265 

ANALYSIS
FIGURES FROM 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 
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Cashflows

Cash flows are classified as those provided by 
operating activities and those used in investing and 
financing activities. Purchase of Property, Plant and 
Equipment are included within investing activities.

Cash provided by operating activities was $1.2m 
lower in 2012/13 than the previous year. Most 
significantly this was impacted by the level of grant 
funding received in 2012/13 being $3.4m lower than 
the previous year. Cash used in investing activities was 
$324,257 less than the previous year. 

Externally restricted cash comprises the balances of 
rent, bonds and unexpended tied grants held in trust 
which increased $1.1m compared to the previous year.

Cash reserves at 30 June 2013 were $11.4m 
compared with $8.1m at the same time last year. 

Although this represents a significant improvement 
in cash on hand at year end, this figure should be 
viewed with caution, as it includes monies received in 
advance held in trust, to be used for specific purposes. 
A reconciliation of the cash balance at year end and its 
purpose is provided below:

2013 2012

Statement of Cash Flows $’000 $’000

Net Cash Flows provided by operating activities  3,899  5,094 

Net Cash Flows used in investing activities  (651)  (327)

Net Cash Flows provided by financing activities - -

NET INCREASE IN CASH HELD  3,248  4,767 

Cash at beginning of reporting period  8,140  3,373 

CASH AT END OF REPORTING PERIOD  11,388  8,140 

Comprising:

     Externally/Internally restricted cash  5,978  4,870 

     Unrestricted cash  5,410  3,270 

     TOTAL 11,388 8,140

2013

$

Cash at the end of the 
financial year

11,387,957 

Less restricted cash:

   ERISS rent held in trust 94,210 

   Security Deposits/Bonds 30,247

   Carried Forward Grants - 
Special Purpose

3,562,657

   Advance of 2013/14 
Operational Grants

2,290,750

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH 5,977,864

BALANCE OF OPERATIONAL 
CASH AT YEAR END

5,410,093

Cash reserves at 30 June 
2013 were $11.4m compared 
with $8.1m at the same time 
last year. 
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Assets 

Assets consist of current assets, which can be converted 
to cash in less than one year and non current assets, 
which consist of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and 
Equipment.

Cash and investments are considered together. The 
increase in 2012/13 from the previous year was 
$3.2m. This has resulted from the reduction in payments 
made to employees and for materials and contracts. 
Receivables decreased $0.1m compared with the 
previous year as a result of stringent monitoring of 
debtor payments. Other assets, which are inventories 
and prepayments, were slightly lower than the previous 
year.

Property, Plant and Equipment decreased by $3.7m 
over the previous year and this is due principally 
to the net movement in the acquisition of assets less 
depreciation expense of $3.98m. However, investments 
increased $0.145m. This represents the 2012/13 50% 
share in the profits of Latitude 12.

Liabilities 

Liabilities consist of current liabilities, which are 
expected to be paid or settled in less than one year and 
non-current liabilities, consisting of provisions expected 
to be paid or settled in more than one year as shown 
above.

Payables declined by $0.2m in 2012/13 from the 
previous year. Total current and non current provisions 
of $1.4m represent the amount required under the 
accounting standards to be set aside to fund employee 
entitlements for annual leave and long service leave. 
For provisions where the amount is legally due and 
payable within the next 12 months it must be disclosed 
as current.

Net Assets and Equity

Net assets declined by $755,996 when compared 
to the previous year, which resulted in total equity 
increasing by the same amount. This is related to 
Council’s Operating Loss for the year.

2013 2012

Assets $’000 $’000

Current Assets   

Cash on hand and at 
bank

11,388 8,140

Trade and other 
receivables

 1,368 1,369 

Inventories and 
Prepayments

652  769

TOTAL CURRENT 
ASSETS

 13,408  10,277 

Non-current 
Assets

Property, plant & 
equipment

 57,436  61,146 

TOTAL ASSETS  70,844  71,423 

2013 2012

Liabilities $’000 $’000

Current Liabilities   

Trade and other 
payables

 2,154  2,373

Provisions  1,118  875 

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 

 3,272  3,247

Non-current liabilites

Provisions  257  104 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  3,529  3,351 

2013 2012

Net Assets $’000 $’000

$67,316 $68,071
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2013 

 
 

   2013  2012 
 Note  $  $ 

     

CONTINUING OPERATIONS     
  
Operating Revenues     

Rates and Annual Charges 3(a)  3,306,161 3,003,581 

User Charges and Fees 3(b)  413,744 434,843 

Interest 3(c)  101,982 85,791 

Grants provided for operating purposes 3(e)  12,095,878 14,863,421 

Contributions and Donations 3(g)  15,562 18,678 

Net Gain on Disposal of Property Plant & Equipment   132,014 224,103 

Other Operating Revenues 3(d)  12,132,754 13,363,449 

Total Operating Revenues   28,198,095 31,993,866 

     

Operating Expenses     

Employee Costs 4(a)  (10,289,856) (10,645,214)

Materials and Contracts 4(b)  (13,700,897) (14,704,211)

Interest Charges 4(c)  (6,580) (8,791)

Other Operating Expenses 4(e)  (784,022) (790,665)

Total Operating Expenses   (24,781,355) (26,148,881)

     

SURPLUS BEFORE DEPRECIATION AND CAPITAL 
GRANTS 

  3,416,740 5,844,985 

     

Grants & Contributions provided for:     

- Acquisition of assets (Capital Grants) 3(f) 465,082 825,904 

    

OPERATIONAL SURPLUS BEFORE DEPRECIATON   3,881,822 6,670,890 

     

Depreciation and Amortisation 4(d) (4,637,818) (4,405,500)

     

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 
(DEFICIT) / SURPLUS 

  (755,996) 2,265,390 

     
 
 
 
 

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June 2013 

 

   2013  2012 

 Note  $  $ 

CURRENT ASSETS      

Cash and Cash Equivalents 5(a)  11,234,701 8,065,432 

Investments Short Term Deposits 5(b)  153,260 74,338 

Trade and Other Receivables 6  1,368,467 1,368,667 

Inventories 7(a)  495,641 496,005 

Other 7(b)  156,396 272,885 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS   13,408,465 10,277,327 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS     

Investments in Associates 9(a)  699,367 554,714 

Property, Plant and Equipment 8(a)  56,736,514 60,563,757 

Work In Progress 8(b)  -    27,273 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS   57,435,881 61,145,744 

TOTAL ASSETS   70,844,346 71,423,071 

     

CURRENT LIABILITIES     

Trade and Other Payables 10(a)  1,363,852 1,155,830 

Provisions 10(b.1)  1,118,128 874,915 

Other Liabilities 10(c)  790,240 1,216,948 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   3,272,220 3,247,693 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES     

Provisions 10(b.2)  256,552 103,808 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   256,552 103,808 

TOTAL LIABILITIES   3,528,772 3,351,501 

  

NET ASSETS   67,315,574 68,071,570 

 
EQUITY 

    

Accumulated Funds   67,315,574 68,071,570 

TOTAL EQUITY   67,315,574 68,071,570 
 
 
 

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of Working Capital 
For the year ended 30 June 2013 

 
 

   2013  2012 

 Note  $  $ 

CURRENT ASSETS      

Cash and Cash Equivalents 5  5,410,093 3,185,667 

Trade and Other Receivables   1,368,467 1,368,667 

Inventories   495,641 496,005 

Other   156,396 272,885 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS   7,430,597 5,323,224 

     

Less:     

CURRENT LIABILITIES     

Trade and other payables   1,363,852 1,155,830 

Provisions   1,118,128 874,915 

Other Liabilities   790,240 1,216,948 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   3,272,220 3,247,693 

     

     

NET CURRENT ASSETS (Working Capital)   4,158,377 2,075,531 

 
 

    

CURRENT RATIO (this is the ratio of current assets to current 
liabilities) 

 
2.27 1.64

     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The above Statement of Working Capital should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2013 

 
 

 
Accumulated 

Funds 
 Total 

 $  $ 

   

Balance at 1 July 2011 65,806,179 65,806,179 

   

Surplus for the year 2,265,390 2,265,390 

   

Balance at 30 June 2012 68,071,570 68,071,570 

   

Deficit for the year (755,996) (755,996) 

   

Balance at 30 June 2013 67,315,574 67,315,574 

 
 
 
 

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2013 

 
   2013  2012 

 Note  $  $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES      

Receipts:     

Receipts from rates & annual charges   3,200,970 2,956,458 

Receipts from user charges & fees   413,744 434,843 

Interest received   101,982 85,791 

Grants & contributions   12,436,683 15,863,680 

Other operating receipts   11,605,002 13,340,559 

Payments:     

Payments to employees   (9,882,749) (10,656,145) 

Payments for materials & contracts   (9,289,810) (16,308,456) 

Other operating payments   (4,686,340) (622,500) 

     

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities 11(b)  3,899,482 5,094,230 

      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES      

Receipts:     

Proceeds from sale of assets   336,374 234,397 

Proceeds from sale of shares   -    -     

Payments:     

Acquisition of property, plant & equipment   (987,665) (561,431) 

(Advances to) / Repayment of inter-entity loans   -    -    

     

Net Cash Flows used in Investing Activities   (651,291) (327,034) 

     

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES      

Payments:     

Investment in Joint Venture   -    -    

     

Net Cash Flows used in Financing Activities   -    -    

     

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held   3,248,191 4,767,196 

     

Cash at beginning of reporting period   8,139,766 3,372,570 

     

Cash at end of reporting period 11(a)  11,387,957 8,139,766 
 

 
The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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The West Arnhem Shire Council (the Council) was established as a body corporate by a restructuring order 
under section 114C of the Local Government Act on 16 October 2007. West Arnhem Shire Council came into 
full operation on 1 July 2008, when it merged with other constituent councils to form the local government 
authority, also referred to as the West Arnhem Shire Council. The Council incorporates five (5) local 
government bodies: 
 

1. Jabiru Town Council; 
2. Kunbarllanjnja Community Government Council; 
3. Maningrida Council Inc. 
4. Minjilang Community Inc.; and  
5. Warruwi Community Inc. 

 
The principle place of business of the Council is Tasman Crescent, Jabiru NT 0886. 
 
The purpose of this financial report is to provide users with information about the stewardship of the Council 
and accountability for the resources entrusted to it, information about the financial position, performance and 
cash flows of the Council. 
 
This note sets out the principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements by 
Council as set out below. 
 
 
The Local Government Reporting Entity 
 
These financial statements include all businesses through which Council controls resources to carry on its 
functions. In the process of reporting on the Council as a single unit, all transactions and balances between 
functional areas and controlled entities have been eliminated. A summary of contributions to the operating 
result and net assets by function is provided at note 2(a). 
 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
Statement of Compliance 
 
This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations, the requirements of the Local Government Act, the Local 
Government (Accounting) Regulations, and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board. 
 
 
Adoption of new and revised accounting standards 
 
In the current year, the Council has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by 
the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to their operations and effective for the 
current annual reporting period. 
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Standards and Interpretations issued not yet effective 
 
The following new standards, amendments to standards or interpretations have been issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board but are effective for future reporting periods.  It is estimated that the impact of 
adopting these pronouncements when effective will have no material financial impact on future reporting 
periods. 
 
 

 

   Standard 

 Effective for annual 
reporting periods 

beginning on or after

 Expected to be 
initially applied in the 
financial year ending

 AASB 9: Financial Instruments 1 January 2015  30 June 2016 

 AASB 10: Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013  30 June 2014 

 AASB 11: Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013  30 June 2014 

 AASB 12: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013  30 June 2014 

 AASB 13: Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013  30 June 2014 

 AASB 119: Employee benefits 1 January 2013  30 June 2014 

 AASB 127: Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013  30 June 2014 

 AASB 128: Investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures 

1 January 2013  30 June 2014 

 
No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than the application date as stated in the standard. 
 
 
Significant accounting policies 
 
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information 
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying 
transactions or other events is reported. 
 
The accounting policies adopted for the reporting period are consistent with those of the previous reporting 
period except where otherwise indicated. 
 
The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the 
financial report: 
 
 
 
Basis of preparation: 
 
The financial report has been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for the revaluation of certain non-
current assets and financial instruments.  Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in 
exchange for assets.  All amounts are presented in Australian dollars, unless otherwise noted. 
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a) Revenue Recognition: 
 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.  Revenue is measured on 
major income categories as follows: 

 
 

(i). Rates 
 
Rates are recognised as revenue when the Council obtains control over the asset comprising the 
receipt. 
 
Rates are an enforceable debt linked to rateable property that will be recovered when the property is 
next sold, where receipt is outstanding. The rating period and reporting period for the Council 
coincide and accordingly, all rates levied for the year are recognised as revenue. 
 
Uncollected rates are recognised as receivables. A provision is recognised when collection in full is 
no longer probable. 
 
 

(ii). Grants, donations and other contributions 
 
Grants, donations and other contributions are recognised as revenue when the Council obtains 
control over, or the right to receive, the assets, it is probable that future economic benefits comprising 
the asset will flow to the Council, and the amount can be reliably measured. 
 
Control over granted and contributed assets is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) or 
upon notification that a grant has been secured, and is valued at their fair value at the date of 
transfer. 
 
Where grants, contributions and donations are recognised as revenue during the reporting period 
were obtained on the condition that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular 
period, and those conditions were undischarged as at the reporting date, the nature of and amounts 
pertaining to those undischarged conditions are disclosed in these notes. 
 
Grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Council will comply with the 
conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received. Government grants relating to income 
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are received. 
 
 

(iii). Disposal of property, plant and equipment 
 
The gain or loss on disposal of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed from the 
Council and can be measured reliably. 
 
 

(iv). Interest revenue 
 
Interest is recognised as it accrues, when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to 
the Council and it can be measured reliably. 
 
 

(v). User Charges and Service fee revenue 
 
User Charges and Service Fee revenue is recognised when the outcome of such transactions can be 
estimated reliably. 
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b) Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short 
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 
to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
 
 
c) Financial Instruments: 
 

A financial instrument is recognised if the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial assets are recognised at trade date (less impairment). Financial assets are 
derecognised if the Council transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control or 
substantially all risks and rewards of the asset.  Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Council’s 
obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. 
 
Financial Assets 
 
The Council classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables.  The classification depends on the 
purpose for which the financial instrument was acquired.  The Council determines the classification of its 
financial instruments at initial recognition and re evaluates this designation at each reporting date. 
 
Loans and Receivables  
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’.  Loans and receivables are measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less impairment. 
 
 
Effective Interest Method 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of 
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral 
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected 
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period. 
 
 
Impairment of Financial Assets  
Financial assets are assessed for indicators for impairment at each Statement of Financial Position date. 
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or more events that 
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets the estimated future cash flows of the investment 
that that have been impacted. 
 
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original 
effective interest rate.  
 
The carrying amount of financial assets including uncollectible trade receivables is reduced by the 
impairment loss through the use of an allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously 
written off are credited against an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance 
account are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 
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c) Financial Instruments: (cont.) 
 
 
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent the carrying amount of the investment at the 
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the 
impairment not been recognised. 
 
 
Derecognition of Financial Assets  
The Council derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
asset to another entity.  If the Council neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Council recognises its retained interest in the 
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Council retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Council continues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises a collaterised borrowing for the proceeds received. 
 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 
The Council classifies its financial liabilities as other financial liabilities.  This classification pertains to 
financial liabilities that are not held for trading or not designated as at FVPL (Fair Value through Profit & 
Loss) upon inception of the liability.  The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial 
liability was incurred.  The Council determines the classification of its financial liability at initial recognition 
and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date.  
 
 
Trade and other payables  
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Council prior to the end of the 
financial year which remain unpaid.  The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of 
recognition.  
 
Borrowings  
Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.  Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an 
effective yield basis.  
 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of 
allocating interest expense over the relevant period.  The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts the estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or where 
appropriate, a shorter period. 

 
 
 
d) Inventory: 
 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
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e) Investments in Associates: 
 

Associates are companies over which the Council has significant influence through holding, directly or 
indirectly, 20% or more of the voting power of the company. Investments in associates are accounted for in 
the financial statements by applying the equity method of accounting, whereby the investment is initially 
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Council’s share of net 
assets of the associate company. In addition, the Council’s share of the profit or loss of the associate 
company is included in the Council’s profit or loss. 
 
When the Council’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the 
Council discontinues recognising its share of further losses unless it has incurred legal or constructive 
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. Upon the associate subsequently making profits, 
the Council will resume recognising its share of those profits once its share of the profits equals the share of 
the losses not recognised. 

 
 
 
f) Interests in Joint Ventures: 
 

The Council’s interests in joint venture entities are brought to account in the financial statements using the 
equity method of accounting (refer to Note 1 (e) for details). 

 
 
 
g) Property, Plant and Equipment: 
 

(i). Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (including structural assets) 
 
Property, plant and equipment is recognised at cost when control of the asset passes to the Council.  
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition.  Cost related to property, plant 
and equipment gifted, donated or granted to the Council is the fair value of the asset, plus costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition. 
 
The Council recognises assets over the value of $5,000. 
 
 

(ii). Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment, including freehold buildings but excluding 
land. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis so as to write off the net cost or other re-
valued amount of each asset over its expected useful life to its estimated residual value. The 
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each 
annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis. 
 
Depreciation is provided for on a straight line method using lives which are reviewed each reporting 
period. 
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g) Property, Plant and Equipment: (cont.) 
 

(ii)     Depreciation (cont.) 
 
The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation: 
 

Asset Category  2013  2012 

Buildings  2 to 38 years  2 to 38 years 

Plant and Equipment  1 to 14 years  1 to 14 years 

Infrastructure  5 to 50 years  5 to 50 years 

Motor Vehicles  1 to 4 years  1 to 4 years 

Office Furniture and Equipment  1 to 5 years  1 to 5 years 

Other Assets  5 years  5 years 
 
 
It should be noted that the lease for the township of Jabiru is currently set to expire in 2021, it is still 
uncertain as to whether the lease will be extended. However, some buildings and infrastructure 
assets located in Jabiru have been depreciated beyond the life of the lease. Council is of the opinion 
that they will still retain control and enjoy the economic benefits flowing from these assets even after 
the expiry of the lease. 
 
 

(iii). Work In Progress 
 
Initial expenditures incurred for buildings under construction are capitalised as they are incurred and 
depreciation is commenced once the building is complete and ready for use. 
 
 

(iv). Impairment of assets 
 
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested for impairment 
annually.   
 
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.  
 
If such an indication exists and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, 
the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.  
 
The recoverable amount of plant and equipment is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and 
value in use.  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the asset.  
 
For non cash generating assets of the Council such as roads, cycle paths and public buildings, fair 
value is represented by the depreciated optimised replacement cost. Impairment losses are 
recognised in the surplus or deficit. 
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g) Property, Plant and Equipment: (cont.) 
 

(v). Land under Roads 
 
Council has elected not to value or recognise as an asset land under roads acquired prior to 1 July 
2008 in accordance with the election available under AASB 1051 Land under Roads. 
 
 
 

h) Employee Benefits: 
 

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and 
long service leave when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being 
measured reliably. 
 

(i). Employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months 
 

Provisions in respect of employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months are measured at 
their nominal values using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.   

 
(ii). Employee benefits not expected to be settled within 12 months 

 

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 
months are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows to be made by the 
Council in respect of services provided by the employees up to reporting date. In determining the 
present value of future cash outflows, the market yield as at the reporting date on national 
government bonds, which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability, are 
used. 

 
(iii). Defined contribution plans 

 

Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when employees have 
rendered service entitling them to the contributions. The Council contributes in respect of its 
employees to a defined contribution superannuation plan (Local Government Superannuation 
Scheme) established in respect of certain municipalities in South Australia and the Northern Territory. 

 
 
 
i) Budget Information: 

 
Note 2(a) provides budget information of revenues and expenditure of each of the major activities of the 
Council.  Budget figures represented are those approved by the Council at the beginning of the financial 
year. 

 
 
 
j) Tax Status: 

 
West Arnhem Shire Council is tax exempt under Sec 50-25 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997, being 
a local governing body. 
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k) Provisions: 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Council has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that the Council will be required to settle the obligation, and reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, 
the carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 
 
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from 
a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

 
 
 
l) Goods and services tax: 

 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), 
except: 
 

(i).  where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised as 
part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense; 

 

or 
 

(ii). for receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST, the net amount recoverable 
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables. 

 
Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis.  The GST component of 
cashflows arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from or payable to the 
taxation authority, is classified as operating cash flows. 

 
 
 
m) Rounding of amounts: 

 
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and values are rounded to the nearest dollar unless 
otherwise specified. 

 
 
 
n) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty: 

 
No accounting assumptions or estimates have been identified that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next accounting period.  
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o) Economic Dependence 
 
Council is funded predominantly by funding provided from both the Australian and Northern Territory 
Governments to meet operational and capital expenditure needs.  
 
Council has made an operational surplus before depreciation of $3,881,822 in the current year (2012: 
Surplus $6,670,890). After depreciation, Council recorded a deficit for the year of $755,966 (2012: Surplus 
$2,265,390). Based on Council’s Statement of Working Capital, Council has a working capital ratio of 2.97 
(2012: ratio of 1.64), and is in a net current asset position of $6,449,127 (2012: $2,075,531).  
 
This general purpose financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis in the expectation that 
such funding and support from the Australian and Northern Territory Governments will continue. 
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2(a).  Functions 
 

2012 - Revenues, expenses and assets have been attributed to the following functions/activities. Details of 
those functions/activities are provided at note 2(b). 
 
 

   General Public Services Public Order & Safety  Economic Affairs Env. Protection 
  Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget 
Description $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

REVENUE              

Grant Income  - Operating  3,663,748   3,207,147   864,939   1,199,788   3,612,089   4,122,105   -     94,595 
Rates and Annual Charges  1,568,877  1,487,914   -      -      -      -     936,483 924,524 
Sales Income 21,389  32,634   -      -      5,092,936   5,865,526  5,528 9,772 
Contract Fees  120,000   100,000   -      -     1,017,392  1,044,688  -     -     
Service Fee Income  36,131   35,841   -      -      224,760   184,582  15,728 18,182 
User Charges and Fees  156,074   213,580   4,694   8,020   91,963   121,337  -     -     
Interest Income  79,029   84,547   -      -      22,953   19,624   -      -     
Contributions  936   936   -      -      -      -      -      -     
Reimbursements  35,448   45,342   -      -      -      -      -      -     
Other Revenue 133,759  177,889   -      -      191,109   5,464   -      -     
FAO Childcare Benefit  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -     
Share of Associates Profit 
Before Tax 

 -      -      -      -      144,653   -      -      -     

Grant Income - Capital  -      -      91,233   -      -      -      -     -     
          

TOTAL REVENUE  5,815,391   5,385,830  960,866   1,207,808  10,397,855   11,363,326   957,739   1,047,073 

EXPENDITURE         

Employee Costs  2,598,977   2,919,363   663,440   724,418   2,939,610   3,245,508   238,657   377,767  
Materials Expenditure  301,054   350,196   19,078   32,050   4,468,746   5,305,391   2,321   45,285  
Depreciation Expenses   2,390,736   -      -      -      63,927   -      -      -     
Contractor Expenses  939,886   1,070,072   14,254   10,745   500,735   550,071   197,370   241,886  
Electricity Exp  60,013   57,153   4,402   4,459   30,810   17,558   24,952   22,875  
Software Internet and Supp Exp  517,079   465,190   400   436   3,442   4,743   -      -     
Insurance Expenses  487,174   490,961   -      -      777   -      -      -     
Fuel and Oil Expenses   139,795   172,511   134   6,718   274,386   306,338   1,869   1,419  
Freight & Postage Expenses  54,135   62,018   144   750   266,820   347,767   9,478   11,535  
Travel / Accomm. / Training  195,524   312,062   9,966   23,132   68,295   78,112  (6,269)  909  
Consultants and Legal Fees  124,475   103,882   -      -     8,688  50,000   -      -     
Section 19 Leases  133,024   157,345   10,300   -      76,336   67,685   7,455   -     
Repayment Prior Year Funding  -      158,843   -      65,541   -      110,816   -      -     
Communication Expenses  224,259   227,064   1,701   1,621   9,825   8,876   -      -     
Other Material & Contract Exp. 171,895  183,747   3,751   2,014   13,744   359,295  2,004  1,912  
Councillor Allowance Exp.  209,537   230,986   -      -      -      -      -      -     
Water and Sewerage Expenses  10,362   10,259   -      -      21,014   16,855   -      -     
Operating Lease Expenses  24,917   33,963   273   545   -      -      -      -     
Bad debt write-off Exp   78,045  -      -      -      -      -     -      -     
Chairman Allowance Exp.  86,478   86,327   -      -      -      -      -      -     
Plant and Equip. Hire Exp (4,237)  -      273   273   14,454   11,628   -      -     
Bank Fees and Charges  6,405   6,566   -      -      -      -      -      -     
          

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  8,749,533   7,098,508  728,116   872,702   8,761,609  10,480,643    477,837  703,588  

          

NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) :  (2,934,142) (1,712,678) 232,750   335,106   1,636,246   882,683  479,902  343,485  
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2(a).  Components of functions (cont.) 
 
 
 

  
Housing and Comm. 

Amenities Health 
Recreation, Culture 

and Religion  Social Protection 
  Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget 
Description $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

REVENUE         

Grant Income  - Operating  802,156   2,026,600   38,000   183,388  1,491,588  2,003,683  1,623,358  1,811,186  
Rates and Annual Charges  800,801   765,322   -      -      -     -      -     -     
Sales Income  57,913   28,803   -      -      43,894  149,208   -     -     
Contract Fees  4,148,376   4,438,451   -      -      -     -      -     -     
Service Fee Income  278,861   155,751   3,037   2,254   9,160  12,507  448,683  476,640  
User Charges and Fees  109,723   100,833   -      -      51,290  52,757   -     -     
Interest Income  -      -      -      -      -     -      -     -     
Contributions  -      -      -      -      11,024  10,919   3,602  6,948  
Reimbursements  25,247   12,015   -      -      6,700  9,288   8,241  -     
Other Revenue  60,000   -      -      -      44,048  5,000   -     -     
FAO Childcare Benefit  -      -      -      -      -     -      91,775  98,844  
Share of Associates Profit 
Before Tax 

 -      -      -      -      -     -      -     -     

Grant Income - Capital  341,309   -      -      -      32,540  -      -     -     
        

TOTAL REVENUE  6,624,386   7,527,775   41,037   185,642   1,690,244  2,243,362  2,175,659  2,393,618  

EXPENDITURE       

Employee Costs  1,517,898   1,888,436   48,359   94,931   1,187,238  1,393,301  1,095,677  1,246,217  
Materials Expenditure  464,464   1,430,199  32,195  32,507   125,474  369,131   204,530  267,901  
Depreciation Expenses   2,183,155   -      -      -      -     -      -     -     
Contractor Expenses  1,669,384   2,206,524  3,143  6,455   356,166  324,572   118,213  83,176  
Electricity Exp  371,007   342,735   281   -      87,775  88,421   18,911  14,873  
Software Internet and Supp Exp  2,343   2,293   177   355   390  425   1,304  1,461  
Insurance Expenses  56   -      -      -      -     -      -     -     
Fuel and Oil Expenses   6,862   4,691   2,730   -      3,795  7,396   3,238  5,123  
Freight & Postage Expenses  55,534   91,702  1,764  54   11,115  19,906   20,617  18,945  
Travel / Accomm. / Training  28,070   96,361  3,952  4,200   87,425  143,104   30,876  39,035  
Consultants and Legal Fees  8,525   15,111   -      -      246,500  95,054   -     -     
Section 19 Leases  98,854   107,340   -      -      47,038  -      7,038  7,010  
Repayment Prior Year Funding  30,800   30,800   -      -      163,859  165,663   54,166  238,951  
Communication Expenses  3,732   9,143   832   873   2,182  6,899   2,235  2,116  
Other Material & Contract Exp.  31,176   16,663  3,206  220   6,727  42,593   6,197  4,922  
Councillor Allowance Exp.  -      -      -      -      -     -      -     -     
Water and Sewerage Expenses  112,401   89,104   541   -      8,921  8,195   466  -     
Operating Lease Expenses  99,254   107,336   -      -      1,196  638   -     -     
Bad debt write-off Exp 21,939  -      -      -      -     -      -     -     
Chairman Allowance Exp.  -      -      -      -      -     -      -     -     
Plant and Equip. Hire Exp  -      -      -      -      -     2,000   -     -     
Bank Fees and Charges  -      -      -      -      -     -      175  56  
        

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 6,705,454  6,438,438   97,180   139,595   2,335,801  2,667,298  1,563,643  1,929,786  

        

NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) :  (81,068)  1,089,337  (56,143)  46,047  (645,557) (423,936)  612,016  463,832  
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2(a).  Components of functions (cont.) 
 

  TOTAL 
  Actual Budget 
Description $ $ 

REVENUE   

Grant Income  - Operating 12,095,878  14,648,492  
Rates and Annual Charges 3,306,161 3,177,760 
Sales Income 5,221,660  6,085,943  
Contract Fees 5,285,768  5,583,139  
Service Fee Income 1,016,360  885,757  
User Charges and Fees 413,744  496,527  
Interest Income 101,982  104,171  
Contributions 15,562  18,803  
Reimbursements 75,636  66,645  
Other Revenue 428,916  188,353  
FAO Childcare Benefit 91,775  98,844  
Share of Associates Profit Before Tax 144,653  -     
Grant Income - Capital 465,082  -     
    

TOTAL REVENUE  28,663,177  31,354,434  

EXPENDITURE   

Employee Costs  10,289,856  11,889,941  
Materials Expenditure  5,617,862   7,832,660  
Depreciation Expenses   4,637,818   -     
Contractor Expenses  3,799,151   4,493,501  
Electricity Exp  598,151   548,074  
Software Internet and Support Expenses  525,135   474,903  
Insurance Expenses  488,007   490,961  
Fuel and Oil Expenses   432,809   504,196  
Freight & Postage Expenses  419,607   552,677  
Travel / Accommodation / Training  417,839   696,915  
Consultants and Legal Fees  388,188   264,047  
Section 19 Leases  380,045   339,380  
Repayment Prior Year Funding  248,825   770,614 
Communication Expenses  244,766   256,592  
Other Material and Contract Exp. 238,700  611,366  
Councillor Allowance Exp.  209,537   230,986  
Water and Sewerage Expenses  153,705   124,413  
Operating Lease Expenses  125,640   142,482  
Bad debt write-off Exp 99,984   -     
Chairman Allowance Exp.  86,478   86,327  
Plant and Equip. Hire Exp  10,490   13,901  
Bank Fees and Charges  6,580   6,622  
    

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  29,419,173  30,330,558  

    

NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) :  (755,996)  1,023,876  
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2(b).  Components of functions  
 
The activities relating to the Council functions reported on in Note 2(a) are as follows: 
 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC SERVICES 
 
Executive and Legislative Functions 
Administration, operation and support of executive and legislative functions and all elements associated with 
Corporate governance. 
 
Financial and Fiscal Affairs 
Administration of Council’s finances and compliance with legislative provisions of Local Government 
(Accounting) Regulations. 
 
General Public Services – including General Admin Corporate Services/Community Services/Works & 
Infrastructure, Other and Office Personnel Maintenance 
Administration, support, regulation, research and operation of general public services including insurance. 
 
 
PUBLIC ORDER & SAFETY 
 
Public Order & Safety 
Control of animals such as dog registration, pounds and the control of stray animals. 
 
 
HEALTH 
 
Public Health Services 
Preventative health programs which have the aim of preventing disease including mosquito control. Conduct 
health inspections of food premises.  
 
 
WELFARE 
 
Childcare Services 
Operation of the Jabiru Childcare Centre and Warruwi Jet Crèches, After School and Vacation Care 
 
Other Welfare Services NEC including: 
CDEP, Community Aged Care, Community Capacity Projects, Community Youth Camp, Emergency Relief, 
Family Safety Program, Endangered Language Programs, Volatile Substance Abuse. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
 
Recycling 
Monitoring, reduction, collection, treatment and disposal of all types of solid waste intended for recycling. 
 
Solid Waste Management 
Collection, disposal and management of waste products including household garbage, trade and industrial 
waste. 
 
Environmental Protection NEC 
Protection against and reduction of environmental damage by erosion, pollution, weed and vegetation growth 
including special rubbish clean-ups and anti-litter enforcement.  
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2(b).  Components of functions (cont.) 
 
 
Waste Water Management 
Sewerage collection, sewerage treatment and disposal of sewerage.  Maintenance of equipment and collection 
of charges for service. 
 
 
RECREATION & CULTURE 
 
Community Halls and Recreation Centres 
Operation and maintenance of community halls and recreation centres for general community and cultural 
activities. 
 
Swimming Pools 
Operation and maintenance of the swimming pools and gymnasium. 
 
Sport & Recreation Activities  
To facilitate and encourage the development of sport and recreational activities in the region. 
 
Parks, Gardens & Paths 
Administration and maintenance of recreational parks which are green open spaces provided primarily for 
recreation purposes and playgrounds. 
 
Library 
Operation of council’s library including lending and reference services, provision of books, library archives and 
support for library research. 
 
Community Celebrations 
Activities relating to national, regional and local celebrations including Australia Day, Anzac Day, etc. 
 
Other Performing Arts 
The presentation of artistic performances including funding for the administration, support, provision and 
operation of festivals which provide a range of predominantly artistic performances. 
 
Sports Grounds 
Management of purpose built sport grounds that would normally involve turf management including 
maintenance of facilities attached to the sport ground. 
 
Cultural or Arts Services NEC – including Endangered Languages and Song Project 
The support, Provision, Operation, etc, of arts or culture related activities that cannot be assigned elsewhere. 
 
 
OTHER ECONOMIC AFFAIRS 
 
Public Relations, Tourism and Area Promotion -  
Facilitation and encouragement of activities which will promote tourism in Jabiru. Includes council promotion to 
attract development. 
 
 
HOUSING & COMMUNITY AMENITIES 
 
Community Maintenance and Capital Upgrades 
Maintain the housing provided for the indigenous residents, government employees and other tenants of the 
shire. 
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2(b).  Components of functions (cont.) 
 
 
Community Development & Planning  
Administering zoning laws, town planning regulations on land use and planning regarding culture and recreation 
facilities. 
 
Water Supply 
Maintain the water supply services provided by Jabiru Town Council. Monitor the treatment and supply of town 
water.  Maintain town bores. 
 
Public Housing 
Under agency agreements with ERISS and Territory Housing provide administrative support, undertake 
inspections, arrange repairs and maintenance, etc of housing accommodation. 
 
Cemetery, Street Lighting & Amenities 
Administration, regulation, installation, operation and maintenance of street lights. 
 
Housing and Community Amenities NEC 
Including Sanitation & Garbage, Stormwater, Sewerage anti-litter and Weed Control. 
 
 
EDUCATION 
 
Education NEC 
Provision of youth welfare services which are developmental in nature including: 
 Youth Employment Services 
 Youth Advisory Committee 
 
 
OTHER PURPOSES 
 
Inter-Government Transactions 
To foster co-operative relations with all spheres of Government to enable the West Arnhem community to 
benefit from equitable treatment. Includes grants, advances or other inter-government transactions.  
 
 
TRANSPORT & COMMUNICATION 
 
Road Maintenance – Roads 
Servicing and operation of the road system, road pavement and footway/cycle paths, shoulder maintenance. 
 
Road Transport – MVR 
To provide a Motor Registry service as an agent for MVR including vehicle registration and driver licensing, 
vehicle safety inspections. 
 
 



 
West Arnhem Shire Council 

 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2013 

 

 

- 27 - 

 
  2013  2012 

  $  $ 

3. OPERATING REVENUES    

     

(a) Rates and Annual Charges    

 Ordinary Rates    

 General 1,568,876  1,375,726 

     

 Annual Charges    

 Domestic Waste Charges 936,484  850,172 

 Water Rates 800,801  777,682 

     

 Total Rates and Annual Charges 3,306,161  3,003,581 

     

(b) User Charges and Fees    

 Equipment Hire Income 150,635  86,388 

 Property Lease Rental Fee Income 113,839  116,522 

 User Charge Fee Income 70,110  58,672 

 Other 79,160  173,261 

 Total User Charges and Fees 413,744  434,843 

     

(c) Interest    

 Interest on Investments 101,982  85,791 

 Total Interests 101,982  85,791 

     

(d) Other Operating Revenues    

 Reimbursements 75,636  159,428 

 Service Fee Income 1,016,360  1,001,388 

 Sales Income 5,221,660  5,780,733 

 Contract Fees 5,285,768  5,991,699 

 FAO Childcare Benefit 91,775  76,895 

 Share of Profit of Joint Venture 144,653  216,874 

 Other Revenue  296,902  136,432 

 Total Other Operating Revenues 12,132,754  13,363,449 
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  2013  2012 

  $  $ 

3. OPERATING REVENUES (CONT.)    

(e) Grants provided for operating purposes    

 Commonwealth Operational Funding    

 CDEP 1,808,608  2,291,553 

 Night Patrol  845,935  1,262,825 

 HACC Indigenous W/Force 574,335  390,816 

 Youth In Communities - Gunbalanya 305,000  -    

 NT Jobs Transition - Indigenous Arts & Culture 283,653  273,150 

 Warruwi – Crèche 244,930  100,448 

 Indigenous Sport and Recreation 188,835  174,000 

 HACC Services - Gun, Min, War 170,587     - 

 Jobs Creation Package - Sport & Rec (DOHA) 161,385  159,000 

 School Nutrition Program - Minjilang 125,878  247,710 

 Warruwi & Minjilang Arts 125,000  155,000 

 Bininj Gunwok Language Project 120,000  -     

 Minjilang Endangered Languages Project 120,000  157,450 

 Remote Indigenous Broadcasting Service 65,000  65,000 

 MAWNG (MIRL) 50,000  102,300 

 Jabiru Child Care - DEEWR 46,764  44,186 

 
HACC Service Provider Support and Development 
Activities 

40,000     - 

 Warruwi Outside School Care 39,105  -    

 Emergency Relief 19,004  19,004 

 Kunwinjku Language Program -      140,140 

 Community Aged Care - Packages - Gunbalanya -DOHA -      86,604 

 After School Care - Warruwi  -      48,111 

 Vacation Care - Warruwi -      28,867 

 ICSI Refurbishment Minjilang Furniture -      15,000 

 Total Commonwealth Operational Funding 5,334,019  5,761,164 

     

     

 NT Operational Funding    

 NT Operational Funding 2,283,465  2,992,973 

 FAA Federal Assistance NT Grants Commission 1,258,283  1,400,543 

 Roads NT Grants Commission 1,079,890  1,375,518 

 NDRRA - Tropical Cyclone Grant 782,906  507,194 

 Matching Funds Grant - DLGHS 718,591  554,164 
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  2013  2012 

  $  $ 

3. OPERATING REVENUES (CONT.)    

(e) Grants provided for operating purposes (cont.)    

 Act Remote Comm. S & R Officers 208,000  211,296 

 Workplace Mentoring in Regional Shire Service 122,000  118,000 

 Jabiru Town Library 93,375  90,427 

 Indigenous Environmental Health Officer Maningrida 70,540  17,858 

 Disability In Home Support Services  45,418  -    

 Jabiru Child Care - DHACS 29,048  31,437 

 ITEP: Post SIHIP Workforce Development 19,250  19,250 

 Jamuluk Festival 19,000  -    

 Maningrida Park Area 17,890  -    

 Shire Street Naming Project: Gunbalanya & Maningrida 5,000  -    

 Long Day Care Toy & Equipment 2,294  -    

 SPG - Housing Management Program Fencing -      1,185,000 

 HACC Services - Gun, Min, War -      172,708 

 Closing the Gap - Strengthen Governance Capacity  -      124,375 

 SPG - Consultant Financial Expertise -      80,000 

 Gunbalanya Sport Demonstration Project  -      50,000 

 Local Area Traffic Mgmt - Gunbalanya & Maningrida  -      48,477 

 Volatile Substance Abuse -      43,746 

 Facility Development - Jabiru Pool Upgrade -      40,000 

 Environmental Health Grants - Waste Disposal  -      20,000 

 Act Remote Comm. EXTRA FUNDING -      8,000 

 Community Grants - Print Workshop Project  -      5,000 

 Total NT Operational Funding 6,754,950  9,095,966 

     

 Other Operational Funding    

 Australia Day Council Regional Grant  3,000  3,900 

 Children Week Funding 3,000  -     

 Gurrung Sport Carnival - ERA 909  -    

 Jabiru Child Care - ERA -      1,818 

 Early Childhood Association Inc -      300 

 Library Funding - ERA -      273 

 Total Other Operational Funding 6,909  6,291 

     

 TOTAL OPERATIONAL GRANTS 12,095,878  14,863,421 
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  2013  2012 

  $  $ 

3. OPERATING REVENUES (CONT.)    

(f) Capital Grants    

 Commonwealth Capital Funding    

 Fire Truck for Maningrida Emergency Response Group 91,233  -     

 Upgrade Gunbalanya Aged Care Facility 32,540  -     

 Roads To Recovery -      611,511 

 Community Aged Care - Troop Carrier -      69,488 

 Total Commonwealth Capital Funding 123,773  680,999 

     

 NT Capital Funding    

 SPG – Purchase Rubbish Compactor Gunbalanya 253,436  -     

 SPG – Purchase Tractor and Slasher Gunbalanya 49,418  -     

 SPG – Purchase of Mowers - Minjilang & Warruwi 38,455  -     

 SPG - Jabiru Pool Playground Equipment -      144,905 

 Total NT Capital Funding 341,309  144,905 

     

 TOTAL CAPITAL GRANTS 465,082  825,904 

     

     

(g) Contributions and Donations    

 Cash from Fundraising 13,926  3,406 

 Cash Donations 1,636  15,273 

 Total Contributions and Donations 15,562  18,678 

     

     

4. OPERATING EXPENSES    

     

(a) Employee Costs    

 Wages and Salaries 7,123,956  7,780,563 

 Employee Leave Benefits 1,445,922  1,235,167 

 Superannuation 986,843  970,024 

 Locality & Other Allowances 368,589  358,397 

 Relocation/Recruitment 172,742  43,584 

 Worker's Compensation 156,517  168,252 

 FBT 35,287  89,227 

 Total Employee Costs 10,289,856  10,645,214 
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  2013  2012 

  $  $ 

4. OPERATING EXPENSES (CONT.)    

     

(b) Materials and Contracts    

 Material Expenditure 5,617,862  6,312,041 

 Contractor expenses 3,799,151  4,326,167 

 Electricity 598,151  473,625 

 Software / Internet / Support 525,135  410,426 

 Fuel & Oil Motor Vehicles 432,809  377,194 

 Freight 419,607  444,244 

 Travel / Accommodation / Training 417,839  554,303 

 Consultants & Legal Expenses 388,188  291,024 

 Section 19 Leases 380,045  -     

 Repayment Prior Year Funding 248,825  534,356 

 Communication Expenses 244,766  377,468 

 Operating Lease Expenses 125,640  180,668 

 Bad debt write-off  99,984  6,040 

 Plant & Equipment hire 10,490  7,806 

 Other 392,405  408,849 

 Total Materials and Contracts 13,700,897  14,704,211 

     

(c) Interest Charges    

 Bank Fees 6,580  8,704 

 Interest Expenses -      87 

 Total Interest Charges 6,580  8,791 

     

(d) Depreciation and Amortisation    

 Buildings 2,183,155  2,179,024 

 Infrastructure 1,462,653  1,178,432 

 Plant and Machinery 477,520  479,944 

 Motor Vehicles 411,973  489,130 

 ALPA Gunbalanya Store 63,927  63,499 

 Furniture and Fittings 34,490  11,372 

 Intangibles 4,100  4,100 

 Total Depreciation and Amortisation 4,637,818  4,405,500 
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  2013  2012 

  $  $ 

4. OPERATING EXPENSES (CONT.)    

     

(e) Other Operating Expenses    

 Insurance 488,007  537,185 

 Councillor Allowance Exp 209,537  171,328 

 Council Chairman's Allowance 86,478  82,153 

 Total Other Operating Expenses 784,022  790,665 

     

     

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    

     

(a) Cash    

 Current Operating Accounts & Cash on Hand 11,234,701  8,065,432 

 Total Cash and cash equivalents 11,234,701  8,065,432 

     

 Total Cash consists of:    

 Current Cash 11,234,701  8,065,432 

 Total Cash and cash equivalents 11,234,701  8,065,432 

     

(b) Investments Short Term Deposits    

 Investments Operational General 153,256  74,334 

 Investments Other General 4  4 

 Total Investments Short Term Deposits 153,260  74,338 

     

 RESTRICTED CASH SUMMARY    

 Purpose:    

     

 External Restrictions    

 Externally Restricted included in liabilities:    

 ERISS rent held in trust 94,210  74,265 

 Bonds 30,247  26,527 

 Subtotal 124,457  100,792 

     

 
Externally Restricted Included in Revenue in the 
Current or Past Years: 

   

 SPG - Housing Management Program Fencing 1,184,481  1,185,000 

 CDEP 353,051  508,707 

 GGM Local Priority Fund 293,502  419,293 
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  2013  2012 

  $  $ 

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont.)    

 RESTRICTED CASH SUMMARY (cont.)    

     

 SPG - Rubbish Compactor Gunbalanya 253,436  -     

 NDRRA - Tropical Cyclone Grant 240,498  484,037 

 Youth in Communities 160,300  -     

 Workplace Mentoring In Regional Shire Service 157,912  116,453 

 Roads To Recovery - Standard Projects 143,833  589,873 

 HACC Indigenous W/Force  139,122  184,786 

 Fire Truck for Maningrida Emergency Resp. Group 91,233  -     

 Closing The Gap - Strengthen Governance Capacity  67,213  124,375 

 Night Patrol - Base Upgrade 66,583  90,000 

 NT Jobs Transition - Indig. Arts & Culture - DEWHA 44,492  108,160 

 Warruwi Crèche 42,229  28,323 

 Warruwi & Minjilang Arts 41,957  -     

 VSA Management Plan 40,458  40,458 

 HACC Service Provider Support 40,000  -     

 SPG - Purchase Mowers - Minjilang and Warruwi 38,455  -     

 Local Area Traffic Mgmt. - Gunbalanya & Maningrida  33,349  47,926 

 Night Patrol 30,439  98,575 

 Act Remote Comm. S & R Officers 25,360  29,608 

 Closing The Gap - Governance Training 22,156  22,284 

 Warruwi Outside School Hours Care 21,899  -     

 SPG - Signage For WASC 20,000  20,000 

 Indigenous Environmental Health Service 18,187  -     

 Emergency Relief 17,247  10,897 

 HACC Indigenous Workforce - Equipment Funding 15,009  -     

 Indigenous Sport and Rec - Small Grants 15,000  -     

 Disability in Home Support Services 12,854  -     

 School Nutrition Program - Minjilang 11,736  -     

 Jobs Creation Package - Sport & Rec (PMC) 11,483  1,804 

 Facility Development - Maningrida Oval 8,792  47,000 

 Shire Street Naming Project 4,921  -     

 Closing The Gap Gov. Grant - Video Conferencing 2,998  2,998 

 Long Day Care Toy & Equipment Program 2,294  -     

 Maningrida Park Area 1,348  -     

 Upgrade Gunbalanya Aged Care Facility 734  (1,367) 
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5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont.)    

 RESTRICTED CASH SUMMARY (cont.)    

     

 SPG - Jabiru Childcare Centre - Roof Repairs 79  50,916 

 Community Aged Care Packages (111,983)  -     

 Closing The Gap Infr. Grant - Gunbalanya Office -      161,470 

 SPG - Jabiru Pool Playground Equipment -      117,143 

 SPG - Garbage Truck Jabiru -      94,595 

 Indigenous Comm. Strategic Inv. - Bus & Sports Eq. -      54,429 

 Gunbalanya Sport Demonstration Project -      50,000 

 Local Opportunities Business Assist. - WASC 07/08 -      50,000 

 Facility Develop. - Jabiru Pool Upgrade - Sport & Rec -      39,674 

 Family Safety Program -      25,084 

 ITEP: Post SIHIP Workforce Development  -      19,250 

 ICSI Community Hydration Accessory Project -      15,500 

 ICSI Public Computers -      15,300 

 ABA Excavator & Grader -      14,788 

 After School Care - Warruwi - Operational 07/08 -      13,906 

 Vacation Care - Warruwi -      11,936 

 ICSI Refurbishment Minjilang Furniture -      11,360 

 Environmental Health Grants - Waste Disposal  -      9,455 

 Act Remote Comm. Extra Funding -      8,000 

 ICSI Disco Equipment  -      1,270 

 Matched Funding Grant -      (69,959) 

 Subtotal 3,562,657  4,853,307 

 Total External Restrictions 3,687,114  4,954,099 

     

 Internal Restrictions    

 NT Operational Funding - early release 1,093,708  -     

 NT General Purpose Funding - early release 626,662  -     

 Local Roads Funding - early release 570,380  -     

 Special Purpose Reserves included in Equity -      -     

 Total Internal Restrictions 2,290,750  -     

     

 Total Unrestricted 5,410,093  3,185,667 

     

 TOTAL CASH AVAILABLE 11,387,957  8,139,766 
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6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES    

     

 Rates and Annual Charges 345,483  240,292 

 Other 1,132,909  1,138,951 

 Subtotal 1,478,392  1,379,243 

 Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts (109,925)  (10,576) 

 Total Trade and Other Receivables 1,368,467  1,368,667 

     

 Total Trade and Other Receivables Consist of:    

 Current Trade and Other Receivables 1,368,467  1,368,667 

 Total Trade and Other Receivables 1,368,467  1,368,667 

     

     

(a) Ageing of Trade Receivables:    

 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are 
generally on 30 day terms. 

The ageing of trade receivables is detailed below: 
   

 Not past due 1,131,638  1,320,654 

 Past due 31 - 60 days 29,453  37,220 

 Past due 61 - 90 days 40,793  10,793 

 Past due 91+ days 276,508  10,576 

 Total 1,478,392  1,379,243 

     

     

(b) Past due but not impaired receivables    

 

As at 30 June 2013, current receivables of the 
company with a nominal value of $236,829 (2012 
$48,013) were past due but not impaired. These relate 
to a number of customers for whom there is no history 
of default.  

The ageing of these receivable is as follows: 

   

 Past due 31 - 60 days 29,453  37,220 

 Past due 61 - 90 days 40,793  10,793 

 Past due 91+ days 166,583  -        

 Total 236,829  48,013 
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6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT.)    

     

(c) Impaired receivables:    

 

As at 30 June 2013 receivables with a nominal value of 
$109,925 (2011 $10,576) were impaired. 

The ageing of these receivables is as follows: 
   

 Not past due -         -        

 Past due 31 - 60 days -         -        

 Past due 61 - 90 days -         -        

 Past due 91+ days 109,925  10,576 

 Total 109,925  10,576 

     

     

7. OTHER ASSETS    

     

(a) Inventories    

 Gunbalanya Store Stock 397,491  408,157 

 Fuel Stock 67,649  53,095 

 General Stock 30,501  34,754 

 Total Inventories 495,641  496,005 

     

(b) Other     

 Prepayments 95,856  85,057 

 Accrued Revenue 44,237  187,827 

 Bonds 16,303  -         

 Total Other 156,396  272,885 

     

 Total Other Assets 652,037  768,890 

     

     

8. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT    

     
 Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation

 Buildings    

 At Cost 36,046,405  35,826,563 

 Accumulated Depreciation (11,067,049)  (8,883,894) 

 Written Down Value - Buildings 24,979,356  26,942,670 
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8. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont.)    

 Gross carrying amount and accumulated dep. (cont.)

     

 Infrastructure    

 At Cost 36,128,866  35,892,192 

 Accumulated Depreciation (6,402,755)  (4,940,102) 

 Written Down Value - Infrastructure 29,726,111  30,952,091 

 Plant and Machinery    

 At Cost 3,971,141  3,840,428 

 Accumulated Depreciation (2,854,410)  (2,384,890) 

 Written Down Value - Plant and Machinery 1,116,731  1,455,538 

 Motor Vehicles    

 At Cost 3,131,961  3,445,318 

 Accumulated Depreciation (2,495,446)  (2,591,797) 

 Written Down Value - Motor Vehicles 636,515  853,521 

 Gunbalanya Store - Property, Plant & Equipment    

 At Cost 361,413  358,532 

 Accumulated Depreciation (195,909)  (131,982) 

 Written Down Value - Gunbalanya Store - PP&E 165,504  226,550 

 Furniture and Fittings    

 At Cost 319,389  301,889 

 Accumulated Depreciation (212,899)  (178,409) 

 Written Down Value - Furniture and Fittings 106,490  123,481 

 Intangibles    

 At Cost 20,500  20,500 

 Accumulated Depreciation (14,693)  (10,593) 

 Written Down Value - Intangibles 5,807  9,907 

(a) Total Property, Plant & Equipment 56,736,514  60,563,757 

     

(b) Work In Progress Total -          27,273 
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8. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont.)    

 Movements in carrying amounts    

     

 Buildings    

 At Written Down Value 26,942,669  28,868,101 

 Plus:   Additions 219,842  253,593 

 Less:  Depreciation Expense (2,183,155)  (2,179,024) 

 Written Down Value - Buildings 24,979,356  26,942,669 

     

 Infrastructure    

 At Written Down Value 30,952,090  32,130,522 

 Plus:   Additions 236,674  -         

 Less:  Disposals -          -         

 Less:  Depreciation Expense (1,462,653)  (1,178,432) 

 Written Down Value - Infrastructure 29,726,111  30,952,090 

     

 Plant and Machinery    

 At Written Down Value 1,455,538  1,887,416 

 Plus:   Additions 138,713  48,065 

 Less:  Disposals -          -         

 Less:  Depreciation Expense (477,520)  (479,944) 

 Written Down Value - Plant and Machinery 1,116,731  1,455,538 

     

 Motor Vehicles    

 At Written Down Value 853,521  1,109,054 

 Plus:   Additions 399,327  243,890 

 Less:  Disposals (204,360)  (10,294) 

 Less:  Depreciation Expense (411,973)  (489,130) 

 Written Down Value - Motor Vehicles 636,515  853,521 

     

 Gunbalanya Store - Property, Plant & Equipment    

 At Written Down Value 226,550  169,942 

 Plus:   Additions 2,881  120,107 

 Less:  Disposals   -         

 Less:  Depreciation Expense (63,927)  (63,499) 

 Written Down Value - Gunbalanya Store - PP&E 165,504  226,550 
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8. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont.)    

 Movements in carrying amounts (cont.)    

     

 Furniture and Fittings    

 At Written Down Value 123,480  21,123 

 Plus:   Additions 17,500  113,731 

 Less:  Disposals -          -         

 Less:  Depreciation Expense (34,490)  (11,374) 

 Written Down Value - Furniture and Fittings 106,490  123,480 

     

 Intangibles    

 At Written Down Value 9,907  14,007 

 Plus:   Additions -          -         

 Less:  Disposals -          -         

 Less:  Depreciation Expense (4,100)  (4,100) 

 Written Down Value - Intangibles 5,807  9,907 

     

 Total Property, Plant & Equipment 56,736,514  60,563,757 

     

     

 Summary    

 Total PP&E -     at Written Down Value 60,563,755  64,200,165 

 Plus:   Additions 1,014,937  779,386 

 Less:  Disposals (204,360)  (10,294) 

 Less:  Depreciation Expense (4,637,818)  (4,405,503) 

 Written Down Value - Property, Plant & Equipment 56,736,514  60,563,757 

     

     

     

9. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES    

     

(a) Investment accounted for using the equity method *    

 Latitude 12 699,367  554,714 

 Total  699,367  554,714 

 * Refer to Note 15 for details    
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9. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont.)    

     

(b) Investments at cost or impaired    

 CouncilBiz -         -        

 Total  -         -        

 Total Investments In Associates 699,367  554,714 

     

     

     

10. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES , PROVISIONS 
AND OTHER LIABILITIES 

   

     

(a) Trade and Other Payables    

 Goods and services 957,041  767,701 

 Goods and Services Tax  24,952  17,420 

 Employee Related 381,859  370,710 

 Total Trade and Other Receivables 1,363,852  1,155,830 

     

(b) Provisions    

 Annual Leave – current 639,648  792,621 

 Long Service Leave – non current 256,552  103,808 

 Long Service Leave – current 98,435  -        

 Other – current 380,045  82,294 

 Total Provisions 1,374,680  978,724 

     

 Total Provisions Consist of:    

(b.1) Current Provisions 1,118,128  874,915 

(b.2) Non - Current Provisions 256,552  103,808 

 Total Provisions 1,374,680  978,724 

     

(c) Other Liabilities    

 Other 790,240  1,216,948 

 Total Other Liabilities 790,240  1,216,948 
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11. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS    

     

(a) Reconciliation of cash    

 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash 
includes cash on hand and in banks and investments in 
money market instruments, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts. Cash at the end of the financial year as shown 
in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related 
items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:  

   

     

 Cash on hand and at Bank 11,234,701  8,065,432 

 Investments Short Term Deposits 153,256  74,334 

 Balance per Statement of Cash Flows 11,387,957  8,139,766 

     

(b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash 
from Operating Activities 

   

 Change in Net Assets after operations (755,996)  2,265,390 

 Add:    

 Depreciation & amortisation 4,637,818  4,405,500 

 Decrease in Trade  and other receivables 200  -        

 Decrease in Stock 365  31,207 

 Decrease in Other Assets 116,488  -        

 Increase in Other Current Liabilities -         669,432 

 Increase in Trade and other payables 208,022  -        

 Increase in Provisions 395,957  -        

     

 Less:    

 Share of profit of Associate (144,653)  (216,874) 

 Net profit on sale of fixed assets (132,014)  (224,103) 

 Increase in Trade  and other receivables -         (113,219) 

 Increase in Prepayments -         (160,052) 

 Decrease in Trade Creditors -         (1,345,822) 

 Decrease in Other Liabilities (426,705)  -        

 Decrease in Provisions -         (217,228) 

     

 Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities 3,899,482  5,094,230 
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12. OPERATING LEASES    

     

 

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases 
at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial 
statements are payable as follows: 

   

 Not later than one year 98,188  95,451 

 Later than one year and not later than 5 years 265,497  363,685 

 Total 363,685  459,136 

     

     

13. COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE    

 
No significant commitments for expenditure exist at 30 
June 2013.    

     

     

14. CONDITIONS OVER GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS    

     

 

Grants and contributions that were obtained on the 
condition that they be expended on specified purposes 
or in a future period but which are not yet expended in 
accordance with those conditions, are as follows: 

   

     

 
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting 
period: 

4,853,307  2,606,802 

 Less:    

 
Expended during the current reporting period from 
revenues recognised in previous reporting periods. 

(2,685,126)  (1,351,255) 

 Prior year unexpended grants repaid to funding bodies. (248,825)  (130,162) 

 Plus:    

 
Amounts recognised as revenues in current reporting 
period but not yet expended in accordance with the 
conditions. 

1,643,301  3,727,922 

 
Surplus balances at the close of the current 
reporting period and held as restricted assets 

3,562,657  4,853,307 

     

 
Net increase (decrease) in restricted assets in the 
current reporting period 

(1,290,650)  2,246,505 
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14. CONDITIONS OVER GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
(Cont.) 

   

     

 Unexpended Grants & Contributions Dissection    

 
Amounts recognised as revenues in current reporting 
period but not yet expended in accordance with the 
conditions: 

   

     

 CDEP  353,051    508,707  

 SPG - Purchase Rubbish Compactor Gunbalanya  253,436    -     

 NDRRA - Tropical Cyclone Grant  240,498    484,037  

 Youth in Communities  160,300    -     

 HACC Indigenous W/force   139,122    184,786  

 Workplace Mentoring in Regional Shire Service  122,000    116,453  

 Fire Truck for Maningrida Emergency Response Group  91,233    -     

 NT Jobs Transit. - Indigenous Arts & Culture - DEWHA  44,492    108,160  

 Warruwi Crèche  42,229    28,323  

 Warruwi & Minjilang Arts  41,957    -     

 
HACC Service Provider Support and Development 
Activities 

 40,000    -     

 SPG - Purchase Mowers Minjilang & Warruwi  38,455    -     

 Night Patrol   30,439    98,575  

 Act Remote Comm. S & R Officers  25,360    29,608  

 Warruwi Outside School Care  21,899    -     

 Indigenous Environmental Health Officer Maningrida  18,187    -     

 Emergency Relief  17,247    10,897  

 HACC Indigenous Workforce Equipment  15,008    -     

 Indigenous Sport & Rec Small Grants  15,000    -     

 Disability in Home Support Services  12,854    -     

 School Nutrition Program Minjilang  11,736    -     

 Jobs Creation Package - Sport & Rec (PMC)   11,483    1,804  

 Street Naming Project  4,921    -     

 Long Day Care Toy & Equipment Program  2,294    -     

 Maningrida Park Area  1,348    -     

 Upgrade Gunbalanya Aged Care Facility  734  (1,367) 

 Community Aged Care Packages (111,982)   -     

 SPG - Housing Management Program Fencing    1,185,000  

 Roads To Recovery - Standard Projects   -       589,873  
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14. CONDITIONS OVER GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
(Cont.) 

   

 Unexpended Grants & Contributions Dissection (cont.)    

     

 Closing The Gap Strengthen Governance Capacity  -       124,375  

 SPG - Jabiru Pool Playground Equipment  -       117,143  

 Gunbalanya Sport Demonstration Project   -       50,000  

 Local Area Traffic Mgmt - Gunbalanya & Maningrida  -       47,926  

 Facility Develop. - Jabiru Pool Upgrade - Sport & Rec  -       39,674  

 ITEP: Post SIHIP Workforce Development  -       19,250  

 After School Care - Warruwi   -       13,906  

 Vacation Care - Warruwi  -       11,936  

 ICSI Refurbishment Minjilang Furniture  -       11,360  

 Environmental Health Grants -    Waste Disposal   -       9,455  

 Act Remote Comm. EXTRA FUNDING  -       8,000  

 Matched Funding Grant  -      (69,959) 

 Total  1,643,301  3,727,922 

     

 Expended Grants and Contributions    

 
Amounts expended or returned during the current 
reporting period from revenues recognised in previous 
reporting periods. 

   

 CDEP  508,707    576,447  

 NDRRA - Tropical Cyclone Grant  484,037    -     

 Roads To Recovery   446,040    -     

 HACC Indigenous W/force   184,786    99,276  

 CTG - Infrastructure Grant - Gunbalanya Office  161,470    -     

 GBM LPF Refurbish.- Minjilang Family Ctre & Laundry  125,791    97,482  

 SPG - Jabiru Pool Playground Equipment  117,143    -     

 NT Jobs Transition - Arts & Culture  108,160    -     

 Night Patrol   98,575    -     

 SPG – Garbage Truck - Jabiru  94,595    405  

 Workplace Mentoring  80,541    -     

 Closing The Gap Strengthen Governance Capacity  57,162    -     

 Indigenous Comm Strat. Inv. - Bus & Sports Equipment  54,429    -     

 SPG - Jabiru Childcare Centre - Roof Repairs  50,837    2,644  
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14. CONDITIONS OVER GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
(Cont.) 

   

     

 Expended Grants and Contributions (cont.)    

 Gunbalanya Sport Demonstration Project  50,000    -     

 Local Opportunities Business Assistance  50,000    -     

 Facility Develop. - Jabiru Pool Upgrade - Sport & Rec  39,674    50,000  

 Facility Development - Maningrida Oval  38,208    -     

 Active Remote Communities - Sport & Rec Officers  29,608    -     

 Warruwi Crèche  28,323    -     

 Family Safety Program  25,084   (1,308) 

 Night Patrol - Base Upgrade  23,417    -     

 ITEP Post SIHIP Workforce Development  19,250    -     

 ICSI Hydration Project  15,500    -     

 ICSI Public Access Computers  15,300    -     

 Aba Excavator & Grader  14,788    57,177  

 Local Area Traffic Management  14,577    -     

 After School & Vacation Care  13,906    -     

 Vacation Care - Warruwi  11,936    -     

 ICSI Refurbishment Minjilang Furniture  11,360    -     

 Emergency Relief  10,897    13,374  

 Environmental Health Grants -    Waste Disposal   9,455    -     

 Act Remote Comm. Extra Funding  8,000    11,000  

 Jobs Creation Project - Sport & Rec  1,804    -     

 ICSI Disco Equipment  1,270    12,730  

 SPG - Housing Management Fencing  519    -     

 Closing The Gap Governance Grant  128    8,499  

 Upgrade Gunbalanya Aged Care Facility (1,367)   52,064  

 Matched Funding (69,959)   -     

 Maningrida Dog Management Program  -       100,000  

 RLCIP Upgrade Warruwi Mechanical Workshop  -       81,082  

 NT Jobs Trans. - Indigenous Arts & Culture – DEWHA  -       74,609  

 Youth Diversion - Gunbalanya  -       63,498  

 Community Aged Care - Troop Carrier - DOHA  -       58,669  

 Closing The Gap Govern. Grant - Governance Systems  -       42,100  

 SPG – Upgrade Jabiru Council Chambers  -       39,517  

 Black Spot Program - Jabiru Drive  -       30,583  
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14. CONDITIONS OVER GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
(Cont.) 

   

     

 Expended Grants and Contributions (cont.)    

 CTG - Maningrida Com. Plan - now Cashflow Analysis  -       30,000  

 Night Patrol - Training  -       22,000  

 ICSI Safe House Extra  -       19,000  

 HACC Services - Gun, Min, War  -       15,115  

 Indigenous Environmental Health Officer Maningrida  -       9,987  

 Warruwi & Minjilang Art Industry Support  - 07/08   -       9,984  

 Closing The Gap Govern. Grant - Meeting Room Furn.  -       8,636  

 Closing The Gap Govern. Grant - Video Conferencing  -       3,623  

 VSA Management Plan  -       1,702  

 Caring For Country - Warruwi Water Efficiency  -       2,726  

 School Nutrition Program Minjilang  -      (111,205) 

 Total  2,933,951  1,481,417 

 
 
 
 
15. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE ENTITIES 

 
 
Latitude 12 Pty Ltd 
 
West Arnhem Shire Council has a 50% interest in the joint venture entity Latitude 12 Pty Ltd.  
 
Latitude 12 Pty Ltd is a joint venture commercial enterprise between West Arnhem Shire Council and 
East Arnhem Shire Council. Both Councils are equal shareholders of this entity. The Company is a 
dedicated Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) Service Provider specialising in Finance Processes and 
Records Management, within remote Regional Shires and Local Government as its focussed area of 
operations. 
 
The voting power held by West Arnhem Shire Council is 50%. 
 
The interest in the joint venture is accounted for in the financial statements using the equity method of 
accounting. 
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15. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE ENTITIES (Cont.) 
 

   

 
a) Movements during the year in equity accounted  

investments in associate companies 
 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 554,714  130,340 

Add:    

New investments during the year -      207,500 

Share of associated companies profit after income tax 144,653  216,874 

Balance at the end of the financial year 699,367  554,714 

 
 
b) Equity accounted associate profits are broken down  
as follows: 
 

Share of associate's profit before income tax expense 144,653  181,636 

Share of associate's income tax expense -      35,238 

Share of associate's profit after income tax 144,653  216,874 

 
 
 
Share of Joint ventures entity’s results and financial  
position: 
 

Current Assets 751,190  703,331 

Non Current Assets 211,150  96,866 

Total Assets 962,340  800,197 

Current Liabilities 255,311  212,653 

Non Liabilities 7,662  32,830 

Total Liabilities 262,973  245,483 

Net Assets 699,367  554,714 

    

Revenue 1,582,935  1,548,219 

Expenses (1,438,282)  (1,366,583) 

Profit before income tax 144,653  181,636 

Income tax refund / (expense) -          35,238 

Profit after income tax 144,653  216,874 
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15. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE ENTITIES (Cont.) 
 
 
CouncilBiz 
 
CouncilBiz was incorporated as a Local Government subsidiary on 10 June 2008 and commenced 
operations on 1 July 2008 providing administrative, ICT and Business Systems support services to the 8 
member Shires. It is a Local Government subsidiary, created as part of the Northern Territory Local 
Government Reform Agenda, under the Local Government Act 2008 and Regulations. 
 
Upon the incorporation of CouncilBiz, the Council made an initial funding contribution of $50,000. Under 
the terms and conditions of CouncilBiz’s Constitution, the debts and liabilities of CouncilBiz are 
guaranteed by the members in equal shares or on the basis of the formula agreed by the members. Upon 
the dissolution of CouncilBiz, the amount that remains after such dissolution and the settlement of all 
debts and liabilities shall be transferred to another organisation with a similar purpose as agreed to by the 
members with similar rules to CouncilBiz, such as prohibiting the distribution of assets and income to its 
members. 
 
As the Council will not realise any returns from its $50,000 funding contribution to CouncilBiz, this amount 
was expensed when it was incurred. 
 
 
 
 

16. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
 
The Council is not subject to any significant contingent liabilities in respect of its investment in Latitude 
12. 
 
Under the terms and conditions of the Constitution of CouncilBiz, the Council and other members have 
guaranteed the debts and liabilities of CouncilBiz. As at 30 June 2013, the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, and has not been recognised in the accounts. 
 
 
 
 

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies 
 
The Council’s principal financial instruments comprise receivables, payables and cash and cash 
equivalents. 
 
The Council manages its exposure to financial risks, in accordance with its policies.  The objectives of the 
policies are to maximise the income to the Council whilst minimising the downside risk. 
 
The Council’s activities expose it to normal commercial financial risk.  The main risks the Council is 
exposed to through its financial instruments are liquidity risk, credit risk, market risk and interest rate risk.  
Risks are considered to be low.  
 
Primary responsibility for the identification and control of financial risks rests with the Councillors and 
Senior Management under the authority of the Council Councillors.   
 



 
West Arnhem Shire Council 

 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the year ended 30 June 2013 

 

 

- 49 - 

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT.) 
 
 

(b) Categories of financial instruments 
 

Recognised 
Financial 

Instruments  

Balance 
Sheet 
Notes 

 
Accounting Policies  

 
Terms and conditions 

 
(i)  Financial assets 

 
 

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

 6  Details are set out in note 1(b).  Interest is earned at the 
bank’s benchmark interest 
rate. 
 

Loans and receivables  7  Trade Receivables are carried at 
nominal amounts due less any 
provision for doubtful debts.  A 
provision for doubtful debts is 
recognised when collection of the full 
nominal amount is no longer 
probable.  
 
Loans are measured at amortised 
cost subsequent to initial recognition, 
with any adjustments to the carrying 
amount going through the profit and 
loss. 
 

 Credit sales are normally 
on 30 day terms or other 
negotiated terms. 
 
Loans are settled on 
negotiated terms. 

 
(ii)  Financial liabilities 
 
Trade and other 
payables 

 11 Liabilities are recognised for 
amounts to be paid in the future for 
goods and services received, 
whether or not billed to the Council. 

 Trade liabilities are 
normally settled on 30 day 
terms or other negotiated 
terms. 
 

 
 
 

(c) Net fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
 
Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amount approximates fair value because of their short-       term 
maturity. 
 
Loans and receivables and trade and other payables: Their carrying amounts approximate fair value. 
 
 
 

(d) Liquidity Risk 
 

Liquidity risk arises from the financial liabilities of the entity and the Council’s subsequent ability to meet 
its obligations to repay its financial liabilities as and when they fall due. 
 
The Council reduces its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring its cash flows closely through rolling future 
cash flows and monitoring the ageing of receivables and payables. 
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17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT.) 
 
 

(e) Liquidity Risk (cont.) 
 

The maturity of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2012 is as follows: 
 

      
  Within Within >5  
  1 year 1 - 5 Years Years Total 
  $ $ $ $ 
 

Trade and other payables 1,363,852 -           -           1,363,852 
 

Other Liabilities 790,240 -           -           790,240 
  

 
 
(e) Credit Risk 

 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Council if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument 
fails to meet its contractual obligations. Exposure to credit risk is monitored by management on an 
ongoing basis. The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other 
security, is limited to the total carrying value of financial assets, net of any provisions for impairment of 
those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. 
 
The Council does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of debtors 
under financial instruments entered into by the Council. The majority of Council’s debtors are government 
owned and funded entities and credit risk of Council is low. 

 
 

(f) Market Risk 
 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equity prices will affect the 
Council’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Council does not have any 
material market risk exposure. 
 
 

(g) Interest Rate Risk 
 

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  The Council is exposed to interest rate risk 
primarily from its cash surpluses invested in short term interest bearing deposits. The deposits are only 
made with reputable financial institutions with maturity dates generally being no more than 30 days. 
 
As at balance date the Council had the following financial instruments exposed to variable interest rate 
risk: 
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17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT.) 
 
 

(g) Interest Rate Risk (cont.) 
 
 

       
   2013  2012  
 Financial Assets  $  $  

    

 Cash and cash equivalents 11,234,701 8,065,432  

 Investments Short Term Deposits 153,256 74,334  

   
 
 
At balance sheet date the Council has not entered into any loans or other financial commitments that 
present exposure to interest rate risk. Credit cards are the only short term financial instrument used by 
the Council and balances are cleared at month end. 
 
Sensitivity analysis 
 
The table below details the interest rate sensitivity analysis of the Council at the reporting date holding all 
other variables constant.  A 100 basis point change is deemed to be reasonably possible and is used 
when reporting interest rate risk. 
 
       
   Impact on Profit Impact on Profit   
   Higher/(Lower)  Higher/(Lower)  
   2013  2012  
   $  $  
 

Interest rate + 1.00%  113,880  81,398 
 

 Interest rate -        1.00% (113,880) (81,398)  

     

 
 
The method used to arrive at the possible risk of 100 basis points was based on both statistical and non-       
statistical analysis.  The statistical analysis has been based on the Council’s cash rate for the past years. 
This information is then revised and adjusted for reasonableness under the current economic 
circumstances.  
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18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
 

(a) Responsible Persons 
 
Names of persons holding the position of a Responsible Person at the Council at any time during the year 
are: 
 
Councillors Councillor (President) Lothar Siebert 
  Councillor M Yarmirr 
  Councillor Ralph Blyth 
  Councillor Dene Herreen 
  Councillor James Marrawal 
  Councillor Johnny Namayiwa 
  Councillor Davison Nawirridj 
  Councillor Mathew Ryan  
  Councillor Alex Siebert 
  Councillor Michelle Siebert 
  Councillor Helen Williams  
  Councillor Peter Wilson 
  
Chief Executive Officer  Brian Hylands 
 
 

(b) Remuneration of Responsible Persons 
 
The aggregate compensation made to responsible persons and other members of key management 
personnel is set out below: 
 2013  2012 

 $  $ 

    

Short term employee benefits 774,287  800,908 

Post employment benefits -      -     

Other long term benefits -      -     

Termination benefits 19,593  85,000 

Share based payments -      -     

Total 793,880  885,909 

 
 

(c) Retirement Benefits 
 
No retirement benefits have been made by the Council to a Responsible Person. 
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18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont.) 
 
 

(d) Loans to Responsible Persons 
 
No loans have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Council to a Responsible Person during the 
financial year ended 30 June 2013. 
 
 
 

(e) Other Transactions 
 
Transactions, other than remuneration payments and the reimbursement of approved expenses, were 
entered into by Council with Responsible Persons during the reporting year as below: 
 
 2013  2012 

 $  $ 

    

Motor vehicle and housing benefits 37,953  69,899 

Total 37,953  69,899 

 
 
 

19. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 
 
Amounts received or due and receivable by the auditors of West Arnhem Shire Council are as follows: 
 
 2013  2012 

 $  $ 

    

Audit or review services 87,490  80,680 

Other services -      87,617 

Total 87,490  168,297 
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